LANCASTER

CITY COUNCIL

Promoting City, Coast & Countryside

Committee: BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL

Date: TUESDAY, 24™ NOVEMBER 2009
Venue: LANCASTER TOWN HALL
Time: 6.00 P.M.

Councillors are reminded that as Members of Overview and Scrutiny
they may not be subjected to the Party Whip, which is prohibited under
the Lancaster City Council Constitution.

AGENDA
1. Apologies for Absence
2. Declarations of Interest
3. Minutes

Minutes of the Meeting held on 20™ October 2009 (previously circulated).
4. Iltems of Urgent Business Authorised by the Chairman

5. Report on the Homelessness Prevention Work of the Doorstep Project April -
October 2009 (Pages 1 -7)

Report of Phil McGrath from the YMCA — presentation and questions for a duration of 30
minutes.

6. Cabinet Portfolio Holder Reports (Pages 8 - 61)

Oral reports on range of options identified for making savings and efficiencies in areas of
service activity from Councillor Stuart Langhorn — Leader, Councillor June Ashworth -
Children and Young People, Councillor Abbott Bryning - Education, Skills and
Opportunities, Councillor Jane Fletcher — Valuing People, Councillor Roger Mace —
Internal and Councillor Malcolm Thomas — Finance.

Supporting Papers:

(1) Medium Term Strategy: Finance and Resources — Report of Corporate Directors
(Finance and Performance and Regeneration) and Head of Financial Services.

(2) 2010/11 Budget Update — Report of Corporate Director (Finance and
Performance) and Head of Financial Services.

3) CCTV - Minute from Overview and Scrutiny Committee attached. A Briefing Note
will be circulated to Members.



Corporate Performance Monitoring Reports - Quarter 2

The Leader, as Cabinet Member with responsibility for Performance Management, has
been invited to present the reports (item to follow).

Work Programme Report (Pages 62 - 64)

Report of Head of Democratic Services

ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS

(i)

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

Membership

Councillors Roger Sherlock (Chairman), Emily Heath (Vice-Chairman), Tina Clifford,
Jean Dent, Keran Farrow, Sarah Fishwick, Bob Roe, Keith Sowden and John Whitelegg.

Substitute Membership

Councillors Chris Coates, Roger Dennison, Rebekah Gerrard, Karen Leytham,
Roger Plumb, Peter Robinson, Sylvia Rogerson, Morgwn Trolinger and Paul Woodruff.

Queries regarding this Agenda

Please contact Jane Glenton, Democratic Services - 01524 582068 -
jglenton@lancaster.gov.uk.

Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies

Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively emalil
memberservices@Ilancaster.gov.uk.

MARK CULLINAN,
CHIEF EXECUTIVE,
TOWN HALL,
DALTON SQUARE,
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ

Published on Monday, 16" November 2009



Page 1 Agenda Item 5

Report on the Homelessness Prevention Work of the Doorstep Proiect
' April — October 2008

Access to the services

Access to the Doorstep Project has been a major focus for the first 6 months of the
Homelessness Prevention contract and we have quickly established Doorstep bases
and access points throughout the District. This includes substantive bases at
Signpost MARC in Morecambe and Lancaster and District YMCA's base in

Lancaster. _
Work has been developed to increase access to the service by offering the Doorstep

service af other venues, these have so far included:

HMPYOI Lancaster Farms,
HMP Lancaster Castle,
Ridge l.ea Hospitai,

West End Impact, Morecambe,
Littledale Hall

Slyne with Hest

Yealand Redmayne
Warton

Hornby

Lancaster Auction Mart
Brock Auction Mart

® & € ¢ 8 ¢ e & G 9 @

The service is currently offered 5 days a week 10am — Spm although we aim to
expand this service as further resources are identified and secured.

The service is also availabie and frequently accessed via the internet through the
websites of the Lancaster and District YMCA and Signposts MARC, and by
telephone.

internet access also includes a transiation tool which enables the text on the website
to be translated to a range of fanguages.

Lancaster and District YMCA has also utilised BSL interpreters in its work with
service users accessing the Doorstep Project.

Sensitive to the Needs of Particular Grouy ps

The Doorstep Project has worked to ensure that its work is sensitive to the needs of
particular groups and has worked Closely with appropriate agencies in ensuring that
the specific needs of the service user is being metin a complementary service.

This has included, for example, close work with Lancaster and District Women's Aid
where there has been a Domestic Abuse situation causing potential homelessness.
We have aiso worked with the Lancaster NOMS Service in our work with offénders
and ex-offenders and a range of other support services wherever homelessness
prevention has become an issue for the service user.

In this period we have delivered homelessness prevention services with service
users of the following agencies:



Page 2

Young Peoples Service

HMP Lancaster Castle

HMPYOI Lancaster Farms

Age Concern

Help Direct

Lancashire Fire Service

Children's Centres (Family Support)

e Disc

» Citizens Advice Bureau

e Lancaster and District Women's Aid
e Community Mental Health Service
¢« Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service
s Mental Health Crisis Team

o Tower Project

e The Arc

s [ ancaster Homeless Action Service
s  West End Impact

s Together

¢ Addaction

-]

&

[}

]

-]

The Doorstep Project

Doorstep is rooted in a Housing Options approach and focuses upon a strategy that
is based upon early intervention and pre-crisis work, We have been successful in
preventing service users becoming homeless through a range of inputs including:

Retaining existing accommodation

Landlord liaison — a close liaison with landlords has ensured that issues have been
picked up early and solutions have been negotiated, preventing the eviction of the
tenant and ensuring that the lines of communication between tenant and landtord
have been kept open.

Understanding of legal issues — supporting tenants in knowing their rights as a
tenant and ensuring that the relevant authorities, eg CAB, Lancaster City Council,
Shelter, are involved in cases of illegal eviction etc.

Support with benefits — ensuring that the correct benefits are being claimed and
that where applicable Discretionary Housing Benefits, direct payment instructions,
Community Care Grants etc. are utilised. Doorstep staff work to ensure that
paperwork is complete and that the relevant agencies have alf of the required
information to enable quick decisions and payments,

Referrals — Anti-social behaviour, anger management, addiction etc. can all have an
impact upon the service user's tenancy, Doorstep staff are able to utilise a range of
services both “in-house” and externally to ensure that the root causes of their
housing difficulties are tackled, whilst working with them to secure appropriate
accommodation. Tackling the root causes of the service users homelessness
ensures that recurring homelessness is reduced and is a major focus of the Doorstep
Project.

The Doorstep Project staff take a pro-active approach to referring to services such as
Fioating Support, through Disc. Together and Lancaster City Councils Services.



Page 3

Securing Alternative Accommodation

Access to Accommeodation — The Doorstep Project’'s Accommodation Officer has
worked closely with landlords, lettings agencies, Housing Associations and other
accommodation providers to ensure access to a wide range of accommodation. A
close working relationship with Lancaster University Students Union has enabled
service users of the Doorstep Project to access former “student only” accommaodation
and close work with local lettings agencies has enabled us to widen the impact of the
Deposit Guarantee Scheme, with more landlords accepting the scheme.

The Accommodation Officer has worked with Lancaster City Council staff to develop
a central register of accommodation available in the Private Sector, whilst
maintaining and developing further, good links with Private Landlords.

During this 6 month period we have assisted 7 people in gaining Council Houses,
and secured accommodation for 87 properties with Private Landlords {40 of these
being through the Deposit Guarantee Scheme)

Engaging Hard to Reach

Work with Young People — Doorstep project staff work closely with Lancaster City
Council's Strategic Housing Department, Social Services, Leaving Care Service, and
the Young Peoples Service in their work with young people, this ensures that the
needs of homeless young people are constantly monitored and appropriate
accommodation sought. A direct access to Portland Street Emergency
Accommodation Project with referral to 2a High Street, the Morecambe Foyer and
Council Housing can be pursued through these channels. Doorstep has also
commissioned the development of a schools programme, linking directly to the
National Curriculum, for both Senior and Junior Schools, This will be delivered in
local schools to ensure that accurate, up to date information is available to young
people.

Awareness Raising — In addition to the schools work of the Doorstep Project we
have delivered work at Lancaster and Morecambe College Freshers Fair and have
continued with the Don'’t Duck the Issue campaign. Both of these opportunities have
enabled Doorstep staff to engage with a wide range of service users, particularly
those “hard to reach” groups. A presentation of the Doorstep Project was given to the
Momelessness Forum in April 2009 and was effective in ensuring that local agencies
had a good understanding of the issues. There has also been a presentation at the
Young Peoples Housing Forum and the Mental Health Housing Forum.

The project is currently delivering a Housing Roadshow (expanded from Tenants
Information Campaign to encompass wider issues) across various venues in the
District. The Roadshow consists of 3 display board along with information about
housing issues; debt; home safety; housing benefit; council services and contact
details for where people can get help. The Roadshow is taken to each venue and left
for 1 or 2 weeks:

Morecambe Town Hall

Lancaster Town Hall

Signposts Information and Advice
Morecambe Library

Carnforth Library

Heysham Library

d 2 % & @ e



Page 4

Other venues are currently being considered including Lancaster Library (currently
undergoing refurbishment); Morecambe Health Centre; Lonsdale District Carers.

Alcohol/ Drugs / Substance misuse — Through close work with the YzUp Project,
Community Alcohol Team, Community Drugs Team, Addaction, Inward House and
Littiedate Hall, the Doorstep Project has been able to ensure that addicts and
recovering addicts have been able to access the Project. Doorstep does this in
negotiation with the relevant support for the service user to begin to tackle the abuse
in order to impact upon the sustainability of the tenancy.

Offenders/ Ex-offenders - The Doorstep Project works closely with the YzUp
Project for Offenders and Ex-Offenders, Youth Offending Team, NOMS and the two
Lancaster Prisons to ensure that the service is accessible and utilised by Offenders
and Ex-offenders. Through work with the YzUp Project we are able to begin work on
homelessness prevention at an early stage, ensuring that appropriate
accommodation options are identified and actioned at the earliest opportunity. This
work has resulted in securing funding to appoint a specific Homeiessness Prevention
Officer for ex-offenders. The vacancy is currently being advertised.

Mental Health — Work with CAMHS, CMHT, NOMS, the Mental Health
Homeiessness Forum and Ridge Lea has begun and we have a number of positive
results with people suffering from mental health issues. Links with the Truce Project,
based at the Lancaster and District YMCA has also ensured that we have the
opportunity to access counselling and mediation wherever appropriate.

Domestic Violence — the Doorstep Project works closely with LDWA and Lancaster
City Council to ensure that those experiencing Domestic Violence have speedy
access fo services.

Rough Sleepers ~ Doorstep staff have strong links with Lancaster Homeless Action
Service, Morecambe Homeless Action Service, West End Impact, Faith In Support of
Homeless and The Arc. Through our work we ensure that those who are Rough
Sleepers and those who have been long term homeless have access o the Doorstep
Service, enabling them to access sustainable tenancies.

BME communities including Gypsies and travellers ~ The Doorstep Project is
able to work with members of BME communities by building on existing links that
have supported the accessibility of services. Through this members of these
communities feel able to access the project and have been supported to address
specific needs around homeless prevention and housing poverty. In particular we
have worked with gypsy and travellers from Morecambe and Slyne and Polish
Community in Morecambe. The project has also supported a number of people from
Asian backgrounds. Through our networks with other partners we have been able to
access interpreters and specialist support to ensure that the Doorstep Project is
accessible to all including those for whom English is not their first language.

Case Studies

B is 21 year old man who had previously asked to leave the Foyer because of
unacceptable behaviour. He was accepted into Portland Street Emergency
Accommodation Project and we worked with him regarding the issues that lead to his
exclusion from Morecambe Foyer. Whilst in Portland Street we explored all the
housing options available to him and looked to place him with the most appropriate.
B moved on from Portland Street into his own privately rented accommodation, the
tenancy was set up and all benefit matters put in place. We referred B to Disc



Page 5

Floating Support Service, they have been in contact with him and after 3 months the
tenancy is proving to be a huge success.

C is a Nigerian woman in her 30’s who has 3 children. She was referred into our
service by LDWA as she was suffering from domestic violence. Following our
partnership with LUSU housing we were able fo take this woman and her family away
from harm and piace her in a new family home that met her and her family’s needs.
They are now safe and setiled and she has been able to continue her nursing
studies.

D is a gentieman who has a history of substance abuse and offending (spending
various sentences in prison). D got in contact with us whilst he was completing a
treatment programme with Inward House, we supported him and he began
volunteering at one of our projects. We worked with D whilst in the project and looked
at his long term housing. We secured him private rented accommodation with his
partner, this however became inappropriate as D and his partners relationship
ended. We supported both parties with this fiaising with the landlord enabling the
partner to remain in the property and take over the tenancy and secured D alternative
rented accommodation. Through D’s velunteer work he has now secured full time
employment as a youth worker.

E is a 21 year old woman who has led a chaotic lifestyle since the age of 16. She
was placed in Local Authority care for a period during her teens and has spent 2
sentences in Prison. Prior to her release this year we began to work with her around
her behaviours and looking at resettlement options for her. We worked very closely
with her family and the client. We mediated between the two and were successful in
E being able fo return home to live with her family after a number of years apart. The
Lancaster and District YMCA have continued to support E upon her release and have
assisted her into further education where she is due to begin University next
September. We are currently in the process of signing her into her first tenancy
where she can continue with her personal development readying her for her
experience at University next year.

F and G are sisters, 18 and 23 respectively. F initially came to us seeking assistance
with her housing as she was 29 weeks pregnant and her parents were concerned
about her staying with them once the child was born. At this initial contact after
speaking with both F and her sister it became clear that G also had issues with her
housing that needed addressing rather urgently. We looked at all the options with F,
we made enqguiries both in the private sector and made an application to council
housing foliowed up with letters of support from ourselves.

F was offered a private tenancy with which we supported her in completing Housing
Benefit forms, Community Care Grant application and made a referral to Disc
Floating Support Service. 4 Days before the tenancy was due to be taken up F was
offered a Council tenancy which she has maintained and has been extremely
successful, largely due to the successful appeal by ourselves for her Community
Care Grant application, which enabled her to purchase essential items such as white
goods and furniture. This was key in making sure this tenancy was a success.
Lancaster and District YMCA are providing ongoing support as F has joined the
YMCA's Young Mums group(in partnership with NHS and Be Well} which works
around issues such as diet, well being, economic well being, managing stress and
issues surrounding the raising of a child.

The issues around G's housmg situation were that she was in the process of ‘giving
up’ a private tenancy. We strongly advised against this and explained to her ail the
implications of leaving a tenancy. G went ahead and did this against our advice. G



Page 6

moved in with her friend who was living in a council house. The friend then left the
tenancy handing the keys over to G, the council were informed of this and sought
possession of the property, which we explained to G they were well within their rights
to do and although she hadn't acted with any mal intent or broken any rules it was
purely a case of lack of knowledge of the Housing system. Bearing this in mind and
the homeless implications of losing this accommodation we applied to the councii to
transfer the property into G’s name. We liaised with officers from Strategic Housing
who supported this and between the two agencies work we managed to get the
tenancy transferred and signed into G's name. She is now seftied in this tenancy and
all Housing Benefits forms are dealt with, a Community Care Grant application has
been successful and essential items have been purchased. These were needed as
Council Housing disposed of much her belongings when they sought possession of
the property.

H, a woman who has been homeless for several years through alcohol addiction and
mental health needs, secured a tenancy but was experiencing difficulties with
finances; domestic abuse and alcchol addiction which resulted in H being in danger
of losing the tenancy. We supported H by organising direct payments to her landlord
for housing allowance; working with the Job Centre to re-instate benefits with back
payment and arranging a payment schedule to pay off a debt. His no longerin
danger of losing her tenancy and can now be supported to address issues related to
confidence and self esteem.

J, a woman from the Traveller Community accessed our service due to experiencing
deteriorating health and wishing to find more suitable accommodation. J currently
lives in a caravan and felt that she would benefit from moving to a house. We have
supported J to make applications to Council and Housing Associations and worked
through the process of this, including appointments with housing officers and
gathering medical information. J uses our service to make contact with agencies,
meet with housing staff and to understand the waiting list and points systems. The
case is on-going and J will continue to access the project until her new
accommodation is achieved.

K. an older man, has been a regular user of the service for nearly 2 years. K has an
alcohol addiction and was temporarily living with his sister. We were able to support
K to access new accommodation and were able to continue our support to enable
him to maintain the tenancy. Despite K's chaotic lifestyle which is related to alcohol
misuse he continues to visit the project each week to access the support of our team
who support him to ensure he makes regular payments for his utifities. The routine
that has been established over the past year has enabled K to maintain his tenancy
and easily access any information and advice he needs.

Referrals to Other Agencies:

Strategic Housing 43
CAB 5
Disc 12
Disc (offenders) 4
LDWA B
Shelter 85
Housing Ass ‘ 9
SVP/ Salvation Army 3
| Total 167




Page 7

958 WioL

6T uoiBIpan Alitaey

{1474 230 87 SIBPUBIEO-X] [s1apuayry
J4-41 13ds 0} paLissy 9¢ {5Z-9T} |]aued |02C1044 TEIOT
T 01035 aseand L pRsnOU-9Y 64T {500) sweis saueieng usodag
¥ 138435 pUBLLIO Dassally 6% Lijeap
5 syumied oy pawiniay 97 i 33UA0IA Fuaay
0 AIOU DUBA MBU DBNSS! pIOICUET n ABpUSLOY
0 LMBIOULM 33CN 067 UORRPOWIIONY FUxaas
s Y BIA DjGRHRAR SpRW i Ui 0 X2} HOUNDY
L5 S5Q 2W0 paydeddy e gH
67 NSSEING poddng Adueus ) oy unua | o Alnisg
1 J13SSIONG LUONEIDIW ne UOIE3AT SJUStlsseiey
gy ] $o0 duisn so18s aleaud ti pasnoyay o} SEUPIDICL] LOISSISSOH
0 JBPULBLIDY BIA pasnoyaY o DN
0 Hid BIA P2SNOLUSY oy umopyeaig dilsuciiesy
7 154 Busn pasnoysy ran qag
(S 1DBILO2 JBYLINE ON 74 Hedai-Sip fegeunsun
= FIeBLY TUDY

Z sigasy adedyion

poLiad Ut paso| sase’

poliad Ui pouddo sasen

DAA{O0SD1 SISRD (0 IBGUINU |BIC ]

V68 jeicp
TG DIIADE 10} 15INLRI 1O BUG
TLE poddns jemoely _wmm SLIUOLL G 1503 12 J0)
Pa1UBAdId SEM SSRUSSIBUIOY FIBUM DU SSIUSSIRWOY
SNEA pappy YU PRUDIEFIYL 2028 OUm 3DIApE Bupisanbas ssquiny
_Wﬂ w Us18p 03 J0ud

SSRBWCH S8 Bunussaud ssquiny

UOLBNILS 11943 Pa|OsDl YIOMASED FHADE w;mm:cx L 8315100(],, WoyMm J0; puef{os Ajjenyusiod 10} ssa[aLLOY B SOARSIUBU] PRESPISUOD OUM SAHLEYE - £17 [dAT

Aruady 1095 - pidy 18D pouad 1sloid  d83siood, el 18 Tioday



Agenda Item 6 Page 8

Medium Term Strategy: Finances and Resources
24™ November 2009

Report of the Corporate Directors (Finance & Performance,
and Regeneration) and the Head of Financial Services

i To update Members on proposed changes to the Council’s strategic planning

{ framework, to promote greater understanding of the linkages and co-ordination |
needed between the different elements, in order to deliver improvements in thej

| Councit’s management of resources. :

I In line with these aims, the report also seeks:

i - approval of an updated Corporate Property Strategy

| - approval of Cabinet’s future aims for Council Tax, for referral on to Council
- approval of draft capital investment criteria and initia!l financing assumptions.

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS:

1. That Cabinet considers whether to retain the existing Councii Tax target
increase of 4% for future years, for referral on to Council.

2. That the draft capital funding principles and priorities as set out in Appendix C
be approved, and that they form the initial basis on which Cabinet develops its
Capital Programme proposals for the five year period from 2010/11 onwards.

3. That it be noted that the Head of Financial Services is to submit a capitalisation
bid in connection with lcelandic investmenis, pending confirmation of the
Council’s creditor status.

4. That Cabinet supports the outline proposals to improve the Council’s strategic
planning framework for the future.



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

16

Page 9

. That Cabinet approves the Medium Term Corporate Property Strategy as set

out at Appendix D.
Background

The Council’'s existing policy framework for the management and planning of its
finances includes both the Capital Investment Strategy (CIS) and the Medium Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS), with the latter dealing predominantly with revenue budget
planning, in particular for General Fund.

Other key strategies cover the various different elerments of the Council's resources
but it is acknowledged that some of these are less deveioped that the financial
framework currently in place. That said, the effectiveness of the Council’s financial
management and planning is influenced heavily by the management of other
resources — and vice versa.

These key links are reflected in the latest Use of Resources assessment criteria set
by the Audit Commission. The assessment is designed to consider “how well
organisations manage and use their resources to deliver vaiue for money and better
and sustainable outcomes for local people”. Far 2008/09 financial year the Council
scored ‘2 overall, i.e. performing adequately, and notwithstanding that the
assessment criteria have changed and are now more wide-ranging, this result is
worse than that for the previous year. The individual scores are set out below.

Key Line of Enguiry (KLOE) Score
1. Managing Finances 2
2: Governing the Business 2
3. Managing Resources 1

The score of ‘1 for Managing Resources relates solely to workforce planning, and
this is a particular area in which the Council is aiming to improve, once the Fairpay
process has been implemented. In future though, this Key Line of Enquiry (KLOE)
will assess different areas of resource management and currently it is expected that
for 2009/10 district councils will have their use of natural resources assessed, i.e.
energy, water, air etc. The third strand to this KLOE covers strategic asset
management and at present it seems reasonable to assume that this will be
assessed in 2010/11.

The detailed report on the Use of Resources’ assessment was considered at the iast
meeting of Audit Committee. A number of recommendations are being taken forward
and Officers are having further discussions with External Auditors regarding the
scores. Irrespective of this, on the basis that the Council has scope to improve its
management of resources to deliver better services and outcomes for its district, a
number of actions are proposed regarding the different facets of financial and
resource management, and these are set out later in this report.

Notwithstanding the proposals for the shape of future strategy documents though,
there is a need now for Cabinet to review its aims for the 2010/11 budget and these
are set out overleaf.



2.1

2.1.1

2.1.2

213

214

2.2

2.3

2.4

Page 10

Current Financial Issues for Consideration
Council Tax

The Council's existing Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) sets out projections
for future years’ net revenue spending as compared with the Council's targets for
Council Tax. It therefore provides a financial basis on which Members can consider
and review what changes need to be made to the level and scope of services
provided, if the Council's aims with regard to restricting Council Tax increases in
future years are o be met.

A report elsewhere on the agenda provides an outline update on the budget position
for current and future years. The position is influenced by factors that are within the
Council's control — as weil as factors that are not.

In addition, Appendix A sets out some of the major financial issues and risks facing
the Councif, which need to be considered in deciding future strategy. Appendix B
provides a tabie showing what additional savings would be needed for various
scenarios, if the current assumptions regarding Councit Tax and Government support
levels were changed. It can be seen from this that potentially, there is real scope for
the Council's starting position to be far worse than assumed back in March.
Prospects are very bleak for public finances generally and real terms cuts can
reasonably be expectied — but there is much uncertainty as to the extent and also the
timing, not least because of the next General Election. 1t should be noted that the
scenarios on the Appendix make no assumptions regarding any specific initiatives
that different political parties may put forward.

Cabinet is requested to consider the information in this report and in the separate
budget report and indicate whether, for the time being:

- target increases for future years' Council Tax should remain at no more than 4%
for future years.

Recommendations would then be referred on to Council and form the initial basis for
the budget and planning exercise. There will still be the opportunity to update
the projections and make changes to Council Tax targets later in the exercise,
however. This is a key point, as there is still much uncertainty regarding the
financial outicok.

in considering any proposals, Cabinet is asked to note that at present any supporting
budget information only covers the period up to 2011/12 but the detailed budget
preparation will move them forward another year, i.e. covering 2012/13 also.

Finally and as mentioned at the start of this report, the MTFS review forms the initial
financial basis for progressing the 2010/11 budget and policy framework, and at
previous meetings Cabinet has considered the way forward regarding priority setting
and the associated consultation exercise. Whilst clearly there is much pressure on
authorities generally to save money and restrict Council Tax increases, Members wilt
have aims and aspirations regarding service delivery and potential improvements or
reductions etc. It is important that the MTFS is considered in this context; the two
processes (i.e. financial planning and priority setting) should inform each other and
this is reflected in the timetable approved at the Cabinet meeting back in July.



2.9

2.6

2id

2.8

2.9

2.10

Page 11

Capital Investment Funding Assumptions and Priorities

The current Capital investment Strategy (CIS) was approved back in March and as in
every year, it is necessary to review the funding principles and investment priorities
underlying it to ensure they still meet the Council’s requirements.

The budget report elsewhere on the agenda also includes an cutline update on the
overall capital funding position. In summary, because of the delays in progressing
the sale of land at South Lancaster and expected increased costs associated with
municipal building works and other schemes, there is expected to be a gap in
funding. Non-essential works have already been put on hold and provisionally some
slippage has already been moved into 2010/11.

in view of the above, the flexibility fo allow an interim increase in underlying
borrowing need (known as the Capital Financing Requirement: CFR) may well be
needed. This is already provided for within the existing CIS and Prudential
indicators, through it would have implications for the revenue budget For
exemplification, a £1M increase in CFR could cost around £80K per year but the
biggest risk is that the land sales at South Lancaster cannot be completed, and
compensating sales cannot be achieved either — resulting in permanent increases in
the Council’s financing costs. This could add around £600K per year to the revenue
budget and this is clearly unaffordable. The Town Green inguiry was scheduled to
begin in late October and if possible an update will be provided at the meeting.

Taking account of the Council's current financial standing, the latest projections and
progress in achieving approved savings, the extent of change underway and the
other key financial risks facing the Council, the financial position is still precarious at
present and Council is advised to act accordingly - it is hoped that during the budget,
some greater clarity will be gained. In the interim, much progress can stili be
achieved resolving or taking forward existing issues and approved budget savings.

With these points in mind, Cabinet is requested to determine the basis for developing
the Capital Programme for the next five year period (i.e. 2010/11 to 2014/15).
Proposals are set out at Appendix C; in the main these are based on the existing
strategy and it is recommended that this forms the starting point for Cabinet's
consideration. The priorities can be updated later in any event to reflect financial
needs, or to respond fo issues arising through consideration of the Place Survey or
the public consultation on the Budget. For now though, there are a number of points
to highlight:

One key element that has been missing from the approved Programme so far
relates to Access to Services developments. This has stalied of late, parily
because of the funding difficulties facing the Council but also because of the
extent of change underway — clearly aspects such as accommodation need to fit
with the shape of Council services and any key partnering arrangements.
Members may also remember that {he wider accommodations changes were put
on hold during last year’s budget, because of the financial position. As the shape
of and future direction for council services is clarified, as well as the financial
outlook, work can recommence on deveioping the Access fo Services
Programme.



3.1

i

Page 12

Reports elsewhere on this agenda set out investment proposals for foilets and
climate change actions; at previous meetings Cabinet has also considered cther
potential investment for allotments. Whilst Climate Change is covered explicitly
in the existing investment priorities, the other items are not. Any proposed
widening of the draft investment priorities would need to be considered in context
of affordability and the ability of the Council to meet stakeholder expectations.

Cabinet will see that the Appendix includes provision for financing any losses on
Icelandic investments, should they be capitalised in due course. At present, it is
stilt the case that in one form or another, sufficient resources should be availiable
to cover these without relying on capitaiisation, but this is dependent upon the
revenue position generally, progress on Luneside compensation claims and, not
least, retaining preferential creditor status for two of the three investment claims.
With regard to this latter point, it is anticipated that this wil! be covered in court
proceedings expected to begin in January 2010. The deadline for submitling
capitalisation bids is in December 2009 though, and therefore the Head of
Financial Services is pianning to submit a bid to cover all eventualities. Further
consideration of any financing issues wiil be considered in future budget reports.

The Council is also expecting some general capital and revenue grant in the form
of Performance Reward Grant from the Lancashire Area Agreement but this has
not been quantified as yet. In due course a report will be submitted to Cabinet,
saeking approval for the framework for allocation via the Lancaster District Local
Strategic Partnership (LDLSP).

No general increase in borrowing need is provided for over the period at present.
This is to avoid further pressure on the revenue budget. This will be a key aspect
to review as the budget develops in view of emerging investment needs and
priorities and the principles of the Prudential Code for capital investment
borrawing — these being affordability, prudence, and sustainability.

Future Financial Management and Planning

As is clear from the above, at present the Council’s strategic financial planning is set
out in two separate documents for revenue and capital, although they do highlight the
main linkages, in particular the revenue consequences of capital investment. To
streamline the framework, strengthen further co-ordination and understanding and to
avoid some duplication, in future it is propesed to have one Medium Term Financial
Strategy, covering both revenue and capital. This change is pfanned for 2010/11 and
would be presented to Budget Council in March of next year.

in future it is alsc planned that the MTFS should cover council housing finance, in
line with future housing strategy, although it likely that this change may take some
years to complete fully. Members may be aware that consultation is underway
regarding the future funding arrangements for council housing to support a move
away from the current subsidy system, although this may not be implemented until
2012/13 or so. In any event, the Council needs to ensure that future housing
provision is considered in context of its strategic objectives and that the full
implications are appraised as this is likely to have bearing on General Fund as well
as the Housing Revenue Account. Specific proposals such as the senior
management structure are also expected to affect both Funds. One area that has
come under some criticism in the past is that of future housing rent increases.
Assuming that the Council continues to be a housing provider and future finance



3.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

Page 13

systems allow it, aims and aspirations for rent levels could be modeiled and
considered in much the same way as for Council Tax and this would be catered for in
medium term financial planning.

In support of its financial planning, the Council also needs to improve on its
arrangements for delivering and demonstrating value for money. Some limited work
is being done to review this framework but in truth, there is very little capacity to take
the delivery of this work forward. The receni Place Survey indicated that the public's
view on whether the Council gives value for money was very mixed, with only 2 in 5
residents satisfied with the way Lancaster City Council runs things and 3 in 10
residents believing that the Council provides value for money - this is below the
average for all Lancashire authorities and underlines the need to take action to
demonstrate {(and communicate) what is provided with taxpayers' money. It is
proposed that capacity for this be addressed through future service restructures and
the centralising of the marketing function of the Council. There are three strands to
the capacity conundrum. Firstly, the Councii has some good practice in place and
this is marketed to a degree through initiatives such as Every Penny Counts, but
evidencing these achievements and pulling the information together takes time.
Secondly, there will be some areas in which the Council really needs to improve on
value for money. Thirdly, and as demonstrated in recent Government returns, the
Council is struggling to identify sufficient efficiency savings to meet its National
indicator targets. Improving the position will require cultural and process change,
improved skills and strong leadership and suppori; again, this takes time and
requires capacity.

Strategic Asset Management

The Council’'s property strategy arrangements are currently covered by the Corporate
Property Strategy, which was initially approved in October 2005 and amended in
October 2006. 1t was intended that the Strategy would cover a three year period and
it is therefore now due for review. The revised Strategy, which will follow as
Appendix D, is referred to as the Medium Term Corporate Property Strategy (CPS)
to bring it in fine with the Medium Term Financial Strategy. This is in support of the
Council having a more joined-up approach to the management of its resources, as
mentioned earlier.

Whilst the existing strategy has been adequate to help move forward the
management of the property portfolio, the revised proposal has been updated to
reflect both current thinking in asset management and the current position of the
council's property stock. During the period since 2006, various publications have
been produced which advise on aspects of asset management. These include:

e The Quirk Review of Community Ownership and Management of Public Assels
(2007}

¢« The Energy Perfarmance of Buildings Directive {2007} _

¢« The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors' best practice guidelines, produced
together with Communities and Local Government (June 2000)

¢ An Audit Commission report entitled "Room for Improvement” {June 2009)

These publications have informed the proposed CPS, as has the Key Lines of
Enguiry {(KLOE) in respect of the Use of Resource’ assessment. Crucially through,
the CPS must support the achievement of the Council’'s Corporate Plan, as well as



4.4

5.1

3.2

Page 14

other regulatory and statutory requirements. This is reflected in the following 6 main
objectives on which the proposed Strategy is based:

- Fit for purpose and compliance with statutory requiations/codes:
This reflects the concerns that exist with regard to the current poor condition of
the Council’s portfolio.

—  Value for money:
This is to ensure that the assets deliver value for money, minimise costs in use
whilst maximising returns on investment.

- Improved corporate management:
To reflect optimisation of office space, cross service and partnership working as
promoted by the access to services review.

— Sustainability:
To ensure that all assets are managed efficiently, reflecting in particular the

Council's work under the climate change strategy, elsewhere on the agenda,

— To serve the council’s key aims and objectives:
Assets should contribute to the work of the Council, particuiarly in areas of
regeneration or the need to produce capital receipts to fund capital investment.

- Enabling
Assets can also be used to achieve strategic development and regeneration

opportunities within the district,

The CPS as included on the attached Appendix includes a number of actions with
identified outcomes that relate to each objective. In future, these are intended to be
reviewed annually to reflect changes in the Council’s pricrities and the requirements
of the property portfolio. With these points in mind, Cabinet is now requested to
approve the Strategy as set out.

People Management and Workforce Planning

A number of plans are currently being developed to shape services, so that there is
an efficient and effective service delivery structure augmented by support services
that are fit for purpose. JIn times of change, planning and management of the
Council's workforce become even more important if the Council is to achieve iis
objectives, and therefore it is felt essential that this agenda moves forward. Linked to
this, the Council's approach to equality and diversity is not well developed. The
Council is the oniy authority in Lancashire yet to adopt and act upon the new Equality
Framework for Local Government.

As part of the development of the proposals for shaping services, key consideration
will be given to their viability and in particular how we attract, recruit, retain and
develop a talented workforce. The key to this is a robust, yet flexible structure for
workforce planning. The aim is to ensure that workforce planning is embedded in the
Council’'s approach to corporate development. The characteristics of the approach to
be adopted by the City Council are that it will enable us to:

- Explore the future and assess the City Council’s options and define its objectives



5.5

6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

7.3

Page 15

— Fully understand the Human Resources needs, ensuring that we have a
workforce that is fit for purpose and flexible enough tc meet these objectives now
and in the future.

In essence the City Council's approach to workforce planning is an integral part of its
wider organisational development activities, which is informed by the wider workforce
planning issues affecting the region. The appreach should use practical steps to
ensure we have the right people, in the right jobs, with the right skills, at the right
time, in order to deliver the City Council's vision. Proposals in line with these aims
will be presented for Members' consideration in due course. As a wider issue,
proposals for taking forward equality and diversity will also need to be considered.

Management and Use of Natural Resources

An item elsewhere on the agenda sets out proposed updates to the Councils
strategy for tacking Climate Change. This, together with supporting documents such
as the Sustainable Procurement policy, provide a framework for managing the
Council’s natural resources.

In this regard, it should be noted that under the Use of Resources assessment, focus
is very much on the Council's own impact on the environment from the resources it
consumes in the delivery of its services. it is not about the Council acting to reduce
the consumption of resources by others, such as businesses or the wider community
- the area assessment under the Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) is
expected to cover such environmental issues in the wider area. That said, clearly the
Council has a leadership and enabling role in tackiing climate change and other
environmental factors, and that is also reflected in the proposed Strategy (as weil as
cther measures such as air quality).

Using the Proposed Framework to Deliver Better Outcomes

Whilst updating the strategic framework may be relatively straight forward, actually
using it to deliver improvements, rather than it just being a paper exercise, is a much
more involved and harder task. lts success is dependent on strong management and
monitoring, and coordination of activity. In particular, the Council is facing enormous
change in the coming years and maintaining (or establishing) capacity {o manage
that change is key, if the changes are to be successful.

Nonetheiess, it seems clear that beiter use of resources can be gained by
appreciating the linkages between key strategies — likewise with key partners. An
important role for Management Team is to manage and develop these linkages, to
achieve better value for money in Council services.

With these points in mind, a number of actions are outlined below:
- Impact assessments (people, property, sustainability, as well as £s) are to be
undertaken for key budget proposals. For some, the assessment will need to be

very light touch, so focus will be very much on major issues.

The draft framework will be kept under review as this budget process develogs,
to respond to any changes in emerging priorities as a result of consultation, the



9.1

Page 16

Place Survey, financial pressures or legislation etc. Similarly, the Council's
strategic risks are also being updated and this will be fed into the budget process.
In determining the strategic direction of the Council, it is clearly essential that
there is a common understanding of the strategic risks being faced.

Details of Consuitation

The consultation on Cabinet's proposed priorities and budget 2010/11 onwards is

currently being developed, a key part of which will be Cabinet’s targets for Council

Tax. In turn, the outcome of the consultation will feed into future budget and MTFS

considerations.

Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment)

Council Tax Targets:

The options regarding targets are basically to:

- Retain the existing Council Tax target of no more than 4% for future years
Previous approved forecasts indicate that this would require net savings of

around £1,053K and £1,302K to be identified for 2010/11 and 2011/12
respectively, although these wili change as the budget develops.

- Recommend an alternative Council Tax target increase for future years.
The level of any net savings requirement (and the associated risks) would
depend on the tax level proposed.

The main risks attached to either option follow on from the information in this report
and the ability of the Council to take decisions on matching service levels with the
money available to fund them. In addition, the reputation and public perception of the
Council may be affected. The key risks can be summarised as follows:

- Actual savings targets prove to be substantially different from shown above, due
to changes in financial projections.

- Required savings targets can't be met, without having an unacceptable impact on
service delivery — either from the Council's own viewpoint or from pubfic
perception.

- Government / the public perceive the increase to be too high, resuiting in capping
action being taken against the Council and/or a negative impact on public
relations and the Council’s reputation

- Council tax targets are too low, resulting in them being unsustainable in the
longer term, without having adverse effects on future service delivery and/or the
Council’s financial standing and reputation.

The report highlights that there is significant scope for budget projections to change,
as a result of both internal and external factors. To counter this, there wili be further
opportunities to review target increases during the forthcoming budget as more
definite information becomes available on forecast spending.

With regard to capping, Government has demonstrated a firm commitment to using
its capping powers — although this could be affected in future by the General
Election. Should Cabinet wish to support spending levels that resuit in a Council Tax



9.2

8.3

8.4

Page 17

increase much higher that the current MTFS target, then there are strong indications
that the current Government is likely to challenge this course of action. This may well
result in the Council’s budget being capped — in such a situation it would be forced to
cut spending / services in an unplanned way and it would incur rebilling costs.
Alternatively, if Cabinet wish to support a much lower increase, then future
sustainability will be come a major issue. On balance H# is felt that financial prospects
will get worse, rather than better.

In terms of options, the impact on Council Tax payers is key. Members should
consider the balance between providing services that the local community needs and
wants, against how much it is prepared to pay. There will be reputational,
operational and financial risks, opportunities and trade-offs attached to whichever
option Cabinet chooses.

Capital Investment

With regard to future years’ investment principles and funding assumptions, options
are basicaliy:

— to approve retention of existing capital investment criteria, as set out in Appendix
C, or
- to determine alternative proposals.

In considering any alternative proposals, Cabinet would need to have regard to their
proposed corporate priorities and the principles of the Prudential Code, namely
prudence, affordability and sustainability. Risks would depend very much on the
nature of any alternatives put forward.

Strategic Planning Framework
In this regard, options are basically:

— to support the framework proposals for the future, as outlined in the report, in
particular in sections 3to 5, and 7, or

— to reject the proposed changes, and/or put forward alternatives or request further
work to be done on specific aspects.

The rationale behind the proposals is outlined in the background of this report.
Members could choose simply not to change, but it is felt that this would not help
corporate development of the Council, and could undermine attempts to improve the
Council's Use of Resources. Other risks and implications would depend very much
on the issues that Cabinet raise or any amendments put forward.

Corporate Property Strategy
With regard to the Corporate Property Strategy, options are basically:
— to approve the Strategy as set out in Appendix D, or

- to put forward amendments to the proposal and/or request further work to be
done on specific aspects.



Page 18

Again, risks and implications would depend very much on the issues that Cabinet
raise or any amendments put forward. Ultimately though, the Council needs to have

. a Strategy fit for purpose, which gives direction to help ensure that property
management supports delivery of the Councit's objectives and helps achieve value
for money.

10 Cfficer Preferred Option and Comments

There is no specific officer preferred option with regard to Councif Tax levels, That
said, both the Chief Executive and the s151 Officer would advise against planning for
a Council Tax increase much lower than 4% at this time, at least for 2010/11, if
Members aim to continue to provide a wide range of services to the public and wish
to avoid more potential for major service cuts in future years. Conversely, they would
advise against aiming for an increase of around 5% or above at this time as it would
be subject to capping under existing criteria.

Whatever Council Tax targets are in place, Members need to have supporting plans
in place to achieve a balanced budget.

With regard to the other matters contained within this report, the Officer preferred
option is to approve the various proposais as set out. 1t is felt that these present
good starting points for developing capital proposals, and for improving the Council's
strategic resource management planning for the future. ‘

11 Conclusion

The economic outlook has deteriorated significantly since February and there is still
considerable uncertainty in the Council’s financial prospects, which is likely to result
in further pressures. There is now a strong need to respond positively to this
challenge, in ensuring greater focus on key service areas and in delivering the
necessary savings, including service reductions, to achieve Council Tax targets. This
is a scenario facing many councils up and down the country.

| RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

| The Medium Term Financial Strategy and Capital investment Strategies are part of the
{ current policy framework, but this would need updating in future should the
l proposals to amend the strategic framework go forward.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT
i (including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability etc)
1 There is no direct, quantifiable impact arising at this stage, although the MTFS sets |
| out the level of funding expected for the delivery of council services. As such, it will |
! have a direct bearing on the level and impact of services provided in future. Other |
| proposals contained within this report seek to strengthen impact assessments of key
budget proposals. '

1 As referred to in the report — there are no direct quantifiable financial implications at
§ this stage.




Page 19

l The s151 officer has produced this report.

§ Legal Services have been consuited has have no comments on the report.

Il The Monitoring Officer has been consuited and has no further comments.

@ Telephone:01524 582117

Medium Term Financial Strategy




Page 20

‘ APPENDIX A
Medium Term Financial Strategy Update

Key Financial Risks
For Consideration by Cabinet 10 November 2009

This provides an outline of key recognised risks together with points or managing (or mitigating}
them. This will be updated as the budget develops.

Luneside East

Keys risks relate to the outzome of the fands tribunal and assccialed legal costs, and potential clawback
of funding shouid the project not progress to deliver its economic outputs. Should the project progress,
howevar, there is the opporlunity to receive & developer contribution on site transfer, (Mitigation: defence
at fribunal, seeking funding fo advance projeci, use of earmarked reserve)

Other Regeneration {including support etc)

Other regeneration projects have been affected by economic factors, Thosa still in varfous stages of
development (such as the Winter Gardens, Chatgworth Road, ete.) may have financial risks attached to
‘heir conlractual position to date. As a wider issue, there are clear affordability dsks attached to the
Council's regeneralion strategy, in particufar for projects such as the Winter Gardens. There are also
risks atached to project and programme support, including those assoclated with abortive works and
pleans. {Mitigation: covered through specific project & programme management arrangements regarding
feasibility, seeking funding, establishing core staffing support, ete)

Muaicipal Buildings

Egsattiat works are being progressed to protect the Council's interests, but this may lead to additional
financing costs. Price increases are being experiences on the municipal building works programme and
there will be & need to increase the budgels over the coming years o reflect these. At present, the broad
assumption is that most works will fail as capital but this has not been fulty tested as yet. Therg is
therefore the risk that budgets are inappropriate. (Mitigation: through future report to Cabinet and budge!
process; incorporating appraisal of revenue v capital)

Funding of Capital Programme

Should the current capital receipts echedule nol he achievable, this would prevent some capital
investment from happening, but ensuring that funding is in place for gssential works would add more
pressure on revenye and cause affordability and fnancial sustainability risks. (Mitigation: ongaing review
and monitaring, options appraisal through budget Process).

Achievement of Approved Revenue Budget Savings for 2009/10

Fallure to achieve budgeted savings in 2009/10 may result in funding transfers from earmarked reserves
which would have been used for other purposes, or as a last resort, by reducing revenue batances, This
would have an adverse eflfect on the Council's standing and couid affect the delivery of corporate and
service obiectives. (Mitigation: through performance management framework and budget process)

Decision-making

Linked to the above, there is tha risk thal the Council falls to reach agreement in order o deliver a
gatanced, robust and deliverabie budget for 2010/11 and beyond. (Mitigation: through budgel process,
learming from previous years, not being overambitious in terms of balancing service provision agains
Counci Tax jevels, and delivering change)

jcelandic Investments (and invesiment losges generally)

The prospacts for successtul recovery action and affordability risks are still dependent upon maintaining
preferentiai creditor sietus for two of ihe nvesiments made. Risks remain throughout the banking sector
generally,  (Mitigation. angoing wotk through .GA, capliefisation bid, updated Investiment strategy &
future review) J

Government Support (2010/11 and future years)

Whilst it is still possible that Government could alter the orovisional Settlement for 2010711, there is much
highet risk that level of support for futdre years will be worse than currently assumad. (Mitigatior: through
budget process)

Other Econormic Factors and Prospects generally

As well as affecting fulure levels of government support, sconomic factors will affect the Council's
finances through other funding streams, inflation, interest rates and pay setiemants, as well as demand
for services. (Mitigation through budget pBrocsss)



Page 21

Council Tax Cappitig

In recent timas the Government has demonstrated a firm commitment to capping, and whilst the
forthcoming General Election makss future arrangements less certain, pressure lo keep tax increases low
is expacied to remain. (Mitigation: keep any future increases at less than &%)

Concessionary Travel

Costs for current scheme are uncertain, as refmbursement rates (o bus operators are not yet agreed with
bus operators, and usage of scheme can fluctuate.  Responsibilitiss for the scheme from 2011/12
orwards are nol yet decided; any iransfer away from the Council could create new financial pressures {or
could improva position, but ihis di¢ not feature in modeling undertaken). (Miligation: countywide
approach with consullancy support regarding reimbursement rates, pooling arrangements in place,
countywide Hason and review regarding future arrangements)

Falrpay & Equal pay

Tne financial implications of the proposed pay and grading structure have besn recognised as
snsustainable in the medium and longer ierm.  Furthermore, the extent of elements such as market
supplements s uncertain.  {Mitigation; supporting HR policias, use of earmarked roserves and pravision,
commitment fo review and amend the grading structure within 2 years of implementation)

Pensions Costs

The ourrent triennial review perod comes to an end on 31 March 2011 thereafier at present it has been
assumed that pension rates will increase by 2%, However, the impact of demographics and the current
recession on penston fund investments is unknown ai this stage. Also, it is expected that further national
proposais regarding the Pension Scheme wit come through at some point.  (Mifigation: lalson with
Fensions authority, ongoing review through budget process)

Change Management & [nvesting fo Save [8.g. Restructuring Reserves)

There are a number of major restructures currently heing worked on which will incur ane-off tormination
costs. As theses restructures affect sanior officer posts these costs may be significant and it is expected in
broad terms that they will be muore tran is available in the Restructuring Reserve, As a result some costs
may need {o be met from the savings generaled by the restructures or the implemeniation managed in
order to achieve this, There is the risk that the Councli could have insufficient funds available to enable
future change of Lo invest to save. There are also financial risks aftached lo the process of change, and
maintaining sound financial management standards. (Mitigation: though budgel procass, and change
managemen arrangeaments)

HRA review {for General Fund)

The Government has recently consulted on plans to abolish the housing subsidy mechanism and replace
it with & form of redistributad housing debt. Whilst #he Housing Revenue Account would still remain, it is
unclear how these proposals will impact on the General Fund, in parficular in relation lo Treasury
Management and other cost gliocations. The putcome of the consultation process is expected In the new
year. (Mitigation: consuftalion response, monitoring and review of future developmants)

VAT
The VAT recovery claim {estimated in the region of £BO0K) is stifl to be seitled by HMRG,  (Mitigation:

monitoring and review,

Changes In Accounting Requirements

Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) could give rise to changes in ascounting
treatmert of certain transactions, such as leases, and creates additional workload reguiremants on some
services, which may add pressure o the revenus budget. The exterti of risk is dependent on the
dispensations applicable to local authoriies, influenced by professional bodies and Government etc.
{Mitigation: project managemsnt arrangements and monitaring and roview, linked to budget process)

Qther Risk Areas

As welt as the above points, there are many other issues that may present financial risks or opporlunities
i the Council, that have been reporled to Membars and are undar further consideration, Where
significant these will pe highiighted in future budget reports,



Page 22

APFENDIX B

Potential Additional Savings Needed for Various Council Tax &
Government Support Scenarios
For Consideration by Cabinet 10 November 2009

Note : The Additional Savings Requirermests shown below are over and above those included in the current MTFS

which are £1.053M for 2030/14 and £1.302M for 2091/12 (giving a total of £2.3M over the two year period).

|

i

Additicnal Savings Regulrement

2010/11

™

Additonal Savings Requiremant

For example, 8 0% increase for 2010/11 and a 2%
incresse for 2011412 wif require addittonal savings of
£4894K to bo made

20186
increase &
0% 855
1% 574
2% 494
3% 414
4% 334

484
412
330,
249
167

31 240 160 BO 0
2% .
Additonat Savings Requirement 1,183 763 383 223 i
Carrent projections based on provisional increase of 2.4%
€Oo0 | £000 2000

414
331
249
166

83

334
250
167
83

\Additonal Savings Requirement
Lerem projections based on an inurease of 2%

£56

l 328

2012/13

Additanal Savings Requirement
For gxampie, 8 0% increase for 2010/11 and a 2%

savings of 678K o be made.

increase for 2071412 and 20712/13 wilf require additionst

increase
3
0%
1% 923
2% B4Z
3% 762
4% 682

B4t
780
678
598
514

514
428
343

173

z5%

347
261
174
a7

Addiftonal Savings Requirement

Current projections tased on an ncrease of 2%

| 1,169

668

334

167

a2

Best case scenario from above!

Council Tax increase of 4% par annum and Government Bupportis circa 2% per annum resuling in NIL
additional savings requirpment aver the 3 year period {over & above existing approved projections).

Worst case scenario from above:

0% Increase i Souncil Tax per annum end Govermnment Support is reducad broadly by 5% per annum resuiting in £5.5M
sdditional savings requirement over he 3 year petiod (cumulative total value, oot each year).



S
s

1.2

1.3

Page 23

' APPENDIX C
Draft Capital Investment and Funding Assumptions

For Consideration by Cabinet 10 November 2009

initial Funding Forecasts and Assumptions

Underlying Borrowing Requirement (known as the Capital Financing Requirement}

There is no supported underlying borrowing requirement forecast for the five-year penod at
present, but in due course this may change, particularly for the Housing Revenue Account.

Assumnptiens underpinning the Council's ansupporied underiying borrowing requirement are
outlined helow:

i, Tne General Fund capital programme will provide for a £1.4M reduction in the underlying
requirement for unsupported borrowing from 2010i11 onwards.

i, The practice will continue by which the Head of Finance will, under delegated authority,
assess the most appropriate means of financing for the purchase of new vehicles and
equipment, Unsupported borrowing will be selected if this offers a more cost effective
solution than leasing,

i, Further unsupporied borrowing need may be considered in developing the Capital
Programme, but only in conlext of either:

- nroviding cover to meet any additional costs arising in connection with the Luneside East
scheme. Cabinet anproval would be reguired before this tacility could be called on;

- providing cover for any losses associgted with [celandic Investments, should a
capitalisation directive be required (and granted) by Government;

- providing intenm funding for any essential building works, prior to other sources of
funding le.g. capital receipts) becoming available,

. robust, achievable revenue savings being identified or income being generaied to at least
offset the ongoing (whole life} costs associated with individual schemes, and [ or
borrowing being required to support the cashflow position of major schemes spanning
financial years,

iv.  No underiying borrowing requirement is assumed for council housing invesiment, but this
will need Lo be reviewed in light of the cutcome of the housing funding review.

Revenue Financing Of Caplial 8chemes

Substantial general budgetary provision for diract revenue financing will be made within the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) for council housing purposes, in line with existing budget
forecasts. No such general provision will be bufl into the General Fund revenue budget,
though revenue financing related to speciiic schemes may be considered in aporopriate

ciroumstances, 8.0, invest to save schemes.

Revenue financing from reserves will be based on existing earmarked reserve levels (or
projectlons), as long as capital investment propesals maich with the approved use of those
reserves.

Capital Receipts Forecasts

Over the next five years, from D1 Apdl 2011, general capilal receipts tatalling £11M
{provisional estimate} are anticipated, of which approximately £10.2M relates to General Fund

property disposals with the remainder ralating o Council housing. The assumptions regarding
their use are set out below!



Page 24

APPENDIX C

- Any coundil housing capital receipts will be used to suppert ¢apital investment in council
housing siock and supporting assets, and related environmental improvements.

- For General Fund, capital receipts of up to £8.8M will be used over the period 1o support
capital invesiment generally, with the balance being set aside to provide for centingencies
and/or the repayment of debt. Capitai receipts will not normatly be ring-fenced Into
reinvestment into particular areas, as this can undgrming the prioritisation of Investment
needs, but there are exceptions to this!

o Capital receipls arising from the West End Masierplan impiementation will be ring
fenced fo the further development of projects wentified in the Masterplan tiseli, subject
to appropriate Cabinet approval,

- The application of any addiional General Fund capital receipts arising {Le. apparently
exceeding the largel referred to above and not covered by the specific ving-lencing
arrangements oullined) will be considered in context of the likelihood of mesting the overal
target, They wilt not be used to support new spending or commitments.  For Council
Housing, any additional capiiat receipts may be used to support the 30-year business plan,

CAPITAL INVESTMENT PRIORITIES

In line with the Council's core values, priotities and associated targets, capital investment for
the period to 2015 will be focused into delivering the Council's medium ierm pricrities and
opiectives. In determining priorities where funding is imited, then preference will be given {o
those schemaes that contrbute to delivering the agread high priorties for capital investment, as
set oul below:

» Delivering the Council's Economic Vision as set outin the Economis Regeneration
Strateqgy

s« Delivering improvements for Cleaner Streets and the Public Realm

«  Completion of the phased implementation of the Recycling and Waste Management
Strategy

» Delivering schemes that support the Councii's Climate Change Strategy
s Developing further the distriet’s Cycling infrastructure

»  Delivering the City Council's obligations in the Sustainable Community Strategy.
Community Sajety Partnership, and the Lancashire Local Area Agreement

«  Progressing the priorites within the Counci's agreed Housing Strategy and in
particular, in meeting the "Lancaster Standard in the provision of Councll Housing, in
line with the 50-Year Business Plan

o Refurbishment/ reslacement of existing property or facilities required to deliver existing
service levels, of io achieve key performance targets as set out in the Carporate Plan
or Corporate Property Strategy, or to meet other legislative requirements

o New {or the expansion of existing] facilities, where they fink clearly with the Corporate
Plan or new proposed priorities, and they are either:

- at least seif financing (both in revenue and capltal ierms) or

— invest io save proposals that require some up fromt capital investment but would
generale cashable (and where possibie, non-cashable) ongoing revenue savings.
As a genaral guide, payback should be achigvable in the medium term, up le &
years, but longer payback periods may be considered should circumstances
warrant it,



Page 25

MEDIUM TERM CORPORATE
PROPERTY STRATEGY
2009-12

Head of Property Services
2009




Page 26

Index
Page

1.0 Introduction 3
2.0 Government Poiicy 4
3.0 Corporate Objectives 8
4.0 Corporate Asset Policy 8
5.0 Corporate Asset Objectives 9
6.0 Performance Management 10
7.0 The Resource Context 11
8.0 Changes in the External Environment and their Implications for 12

Property
8.0 Service Delivery & Accommodation Needs 13
10.0  The Existing Portfoiib & Current Performance 15
11.0 Review & Challenge 19

Appendices



1.0

L4

1,2

1.3

Page 27

Introduction

The Medium Term Corporate Property Strategy sets out how the council's fand
and property assets are managed both to meet the Council's current
circumstances and the anticipated requirements of customers, staff, legislation
and best practice. The council has a small but diverse range of land and
property that contributes in many ways to the councif’s obiectives. The 2009 -
2012 Medium Term Corporate Property Strategy (CPS) sets out the strategic
direction for the management of the council’'s property portfolio during this three
year period.

The AMP needs to be considered in line with a number of other council plans
and strategies:

Corperate Plan

Medium Term Financial Strategy and Capital Investment Strategy
Community Safety Strategy

Housing Strategy

Sustainability Strategy

Local Development Framework

Economic Vision and Strategy

Corporate improvement and Efficiency Plan
«  Customer First Strategy

«  Children and Young People Strategy

»  Climate Change Strategy

«  Human Resources Strategy

«  Equality and Diversity Strategy

«  Regeneration Strategy

«  Business Plans

«  Corporate Property Strategy

e ¢ @ e & e 2 -

The CPS also needs to reflect government policy and in particular, it needs to
meet the basis of the key lines of enquiry criteria as set out in the Use of
Resource assessments under the inspection process.



2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Page 28

Government Policy

A range of government policies and initiatives affect asset management
planning and the main ones are identified below:

Sir Michael Lyons’ 2004 report Better Management of Public Seclor Assets,
which examined how both Whitehall and local public bodies could improve
property management, targeting £30 bhillion in asset sales and efficiency
savings.

Sir David Varney's 2006 report to HM Treasury, Service Transformation. A
Better Service for Citizens and Businesses, a Better Deal for the Taxpayer,
which argued that transforming public services depended on better use of
property. The report promoted cross-department property management; better
data and benchmarking on use, cost and outputs; and sharing between the
separate central and local government estates,

These reports asserted that public property could be more efficiently managed
and capital released if surpluses were eliminated. Consultants working on
behalf of Communities and Local Government (CLG) found that councils
themselves thought there was ‘scope for producing efficiencies through
reducing the costs tied to property, such as office space and buildings’.

In its response to the 2007 spending review Defivering Value for Money in
Local Government: Meeting the Challenge of CSR07, CLG concurred with a
‘strong consensus’ that the number of offices used by councils could be greatly
reduced if offices were shared and services offered by different public bodies
were co-located.

The firm commitment to savings from the public sector estate was further
evidenced in the 2009 Budget, which targeted £16 billion in receipts from
property and other asset sales over the three years from 2011/12 (when market
conditions may have improved) with the proceeds used to supplement capital
budgets. This was reiterated in the Property strand of the Treasury's
Operational Efficiency Programme, which identified potential efficiencies over
the next ten years of £20 billion in receipts from disposals (excluding council
housing) and £5 billion a year in running costs across the whole public sector
estate, of which the local government estate accounts for over two-thirds. Its
report suggested that departments may need initially to prioritise significant up-
front investment in order to achieve these efficiencies.

These reviews and plans all show the govemment's desire to rationalise council
property and save money. But that is not the only aspiration for the local
government property estate.

The Lyons and Varney reports also informed the 2006 local government White
Paper Strong and Prosperous Communities. This set out a new relationship
between councils and local and community groups in their areas. lts theme was
devolving power and it highlighted fand and property. It encouraged councils to
recognise the potential for assets to be used in pursuit of local objectives
including economic regeneration and neighbourhood renewal, or to improve
services, for example by joining up related services or improving access to
them. The White Paper said that councils and other bodies should plan



29

2.10

2.1

2.12

2.13

Page 29

property jointly. Pooling resources would maximise value for money and help
make services more user friendly.

Ten benefits of good asset management were summarised by CLG in Building
on Strong Foundations. The report stated that effective asset management can:

o deliver exceptional services for citizens, aligned with locally agreed

priorities, while focusing investment ciearly on need,;

empower communities and stimulate debate;

improve the economic weli-being of an area;

ensure that, once built, assets are correctly maintained,;

introduce new working practices and ftrigger cultural organisational

changes;

reduce carbon emissions and improve environmental sustainability,

increase co-location, partnership warking and sharing of knowledge;

= improve the accessibility of services and ensure compliance with the
Disabiiity Discrimination Act 2005;

e generate efficiency gains, capital receipts or an income stream; and

* improve the quality of the public realm.

® 8 @ @

& @

The 2007 Review of Community Ownership and Management of Public Assets
(The Quirk Review), concluded that even if it cost money and sacrificed
potential savings, councils should think of transferring property to community
groups because the benefits could outweigh the risks and opportunity costs in
appropriate circumstances. In 2008, the government published guidance on
managing the risks associated with transferring assets and reaffirmed Quirk’s
conclusions in the White Paper Communities in Control: Real People, Real
Power, which established an independent Asset Transfer Unit to promote asset
transfer and provide information, advice and support to those involved. CLG
continued to promote good asset management more broadly, commissioning
the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) to develop best practice
guidance that was published in 2008.

Further guidance from CLG and RICS (as a leaflet series) was published in
June 2009. In addition the Audit Commission published a report Room for
Improvement also in June 2008 which provided an update since its original
report on asset management in 2000 entitled Hot Property.

The Energy Performance of Buildings Directive (2007) resulted in increasing
Government pressure for local authorities to reduce their CO2 emissions in
order to meet national environmental targets. But more significantly
organisations are realising the very real financial advantages of reducing their
energy costs. The substantial rise in energy costs during 2008 has emphasised
this need to reduce energy consumption. Far from being a threat, energy
efficiency is a huge opportunity for the council.

The objective of The Energy Performance of Buildings Directive (EPBD)
2002/91/EC is to promote the improvement of the energy performance of
buildings within the European Community. Implementing the EPBD will
encourage owners and tenants to choose energy efficient buildings when
seeking new accommodation and to improve the performance of buildings they
occupy. Implementation of the Directive is seen as an impertant contribution to
reducing carbon dioxide emissions as part of the UK climate change
programme.

A



Page 30

2.14 Health & Safety Legislation has placed great emphasis on the safety and
security of employees, customers and clients of the council. Policies and
procedures are in place which meets the requirements of Legionella
prevention, asbestos identification and management, fire regulation and DDA
compliance. Risk assessments and surveys of all buildings have now been
carried out and are used to progress schemes of management and reduction of
risks and where schemes are carried out to remove or reduce risks as far as is
practicable and economic. Ongoing management and review of risk
assessments is built into regular work programmes,

3.0 Corporate Objectives

The Council's Corporate Plan sets out the Council's vision and priorities for the
period from 2009 - 2012. The vision for Lancaster is:

r
i

By promoting city, coast and counfryside, we will secure a safe and
i prosperous community that’'s proud of its natural and culturai assets
. and provides lasting opportunities for all.

Within that Vision, the Council has prioritised a number of separate priorities
each with their own objective(s):

[ SUPPORT QUR LOCAL ECONOMY |

3.1 Increasing economic opportunity is essential in providing the resources we need
to enhance our quality of life. We now have an Economic Strategy in place and
whilst the current economic climate continues to present severe problems to us
all. now more than ever we need to translate that strategy into a viabie funded
programme of regeneration work in Morecambe, Lancaster, and Carnforth in
order to both secure new jobs for the future and attract and keep skilled people
in the district. We will work with our neighbouring communities in South
Cumbria to create a viable and mutually beneficial Morecambe Bay Regional
Park.

Objective 1 Work in partnership to ensure a strategic approach
to economic development and regeneration

CLEAN AND GREEN PLACES |

3.2 Residents’ satisfaction with street cleanliness, waste collection and our recycling
service remains high. We aim to maintain those levels of cleanliness and
satisfaction.

Objective 2 Maintain the cleanliness of our streets and public
spaces.

We need to care for our environment and safeguard the quality of life of the
district. We must ensure that we address issues such as how best to respond
to the chailenges of climate change and effectively manage our resources,
protecting our environment as our district grows and develops in a sustainabie
way.

Objective 3 Develop local responses to Climate Change.



39

3.4

Page 31

| SAFE AND HEALTHY COMMUNITIES |

Tackling crime, the fear of crime and anti-social behaviour are of paramount
importance to our communities and are consistently identified as key priorities
for the district. Our residents believe that a low level of crime is the most
important thing in making our district a good place to live. The Council will
continue to play a leading role in the Community Safety Partnership in
addressing these issues.

Objective 4 Work in partnership and make our district an even
safer place addressing crime and the fear of crime,
and anti-sccial behaviour.

Life expectancy between the more affluent and most deprived parts of our
district varies by as much as ten years. These heaith inequalities must be
tackled across a wide range of partnerships but there are a number of areas we
can influence directly — housing, promoting healthy activities, food protection
and accident prevention.

Obiective 5 To contribute towards health improvement and
reducing health inequalities through both the
delivery of our own services and our work with
parthers.

[ SUPPORT OUR LOCAL COMMUNITIES |

Housing is a fundamental component of our quality of life. Without appropriate
shelter, people cannot meet their basic needs and participate adequately in
society. Reducing homelessness by providing affordable housing for young
people and families continues to be a priority.

Objective 6  To improve the standard, availability and affordability of
housing in the district to meet local needs.

Building cohesive communities is critical to the quality of life for local people. It
brings benefits by creating a society in which people from different
backgrounds can live and work together in an atmosphere of mutual respect
and understanding. We need to maintain the range of opportunities for children
and young people to take part in positive activities and ensure that the wider
needs of the children and young people of the district are met.

The Council has adopted the Lancaster District Local Strategic Partnership’s
Sustainable Community Strategy which sets out a long term strategic vision for
the Lancaster district putting a strong focus on integrating social, econemic and
environmental issues. This strategy whilst highlighting the key local aspirations
for the district also identifies how it contributes to the deliver the wider priorities
of Lancashire wide as set out in the Lancashire Local Area Agreement. This
alignment of priorities is set out in the diagram opposite.

Objective 7 To work in partnership with others meet the differing
needs of communities within our district.



3.5

4.0

4.1

4.2

Page 32

The Corporate Plan is aligned to the Lancashire Local Area Agreement and the
Lancaster District sustainable Community Strategy.

In particular, the Counci's Medium Term Financial Strategy, which with the
Medium Term Corporate Property Strategy, aims fo identify the asset needs of
the Council to meet the priorities iaid out in the Corporate Plan.

Corporate Asset Policy

The way that the Council manages its land and property assets has a direct
impact on both the quality of services that it delivers to the public and the
quality of the environment. It is therefore important that efficient and effective
use is made of these assets to support corporate and service obiectives. For
example, the council's Property Service is a lead Service in the Access to
Services Review under which we must continue to exploit the opportunities to
improve the way we deliver services to our communities, whether face to face
or by telephone, increasing the range of services we offer through our customer
service centres in Morecambe and Lancaster Town Halls.

The CPS highlighis the progress made against the key performance targets
and property improvements implemented over the last year and also reports on
the National Property Performance Indicators. Looking ahead, the CPS sets out
the key asset management tasks and targets for the forthcoming year. The
document is published via the council's website. Actions from the CPS are
included in Service Business Plans, principally that of Property Services.

Governance

4.3

4.4

4.5

Members - the asset management champion on the council's Cabinet is
Councillor Malcolm Thomas. Councillor Thomas has responsibifity for all the
work of Property Services. In addition he also undertakes the same role in
respect of Financial Services and therefore takes overall responsibility for the
council's Use of Resources.

Officers - The Head of Property Services is the designated Corporate Property
Officer for the council with responsibility for strategic asset management
activities. '

Corporate management The asset management function involves all council
departments and the role of the council’s Asset Management Working Group
(AMWG) is key to ensuring there is an effective dialogue on asset management
issues across the councit and, where appropriate, with our partners. AMWG is
chaired by the Corporate Director (Regeneration) and includes the Head of
Property Services in his role as Corporate Property Officer, the Head of
Financial Services and the balance of the Group is made up of senior
representatives from relevant councit services. The AMWG ensures there is an
insight into individual council services, together with a clear understanding of
corporate goais and objectives. Terms of reference for the AMWG are attached
at Appendix 5.

Local Strategic Partnership (LSP)



4.6

4.7

4.8

5.0

5.1

52

Page 33

To enable a wider approach to asset management, individual meetings have
commenced with the County Council and the North Lancashire Teaching PCT.
From the county perspective, there is a preference for an aligned asset
management plan. However, from the city council perspeclive, asset
management is a local area based process.

It is therefore proposed that the LSP should consider setting up a Public Sector
Board Asset Management Group to consider the wider issues involved in asset
management within the Lancaster district and ensure that benefits are obtained
from the most effective use of public money.

Under such an arrangement, all public sector boedies in Lancaster could work
together to:

e Optimise the contribution property makes to the current and future aims and
objectives of the respective organisation

e Optimise and prioritise the level of investment in property o meet these
needs

= Promote the innovative use of property and facilitate joint working through
co-location of services

« Promote property sharing with partners

e |Improve the suitability, condition and sustainability of public sector assets in
the district

Corporate Asset Objectives

The Corporate Property Strategy of 2005 was based on the premise;

That challenge and review of use, provision and performance of property is |
seen as a positive approach to ensuring that assets are fit for purpose and that |
retention, investment and utilisation is focussed on the needs of the customer i
and the achievement of the council’s corporate objectives :

This was linked to a corporate approach to property holding based on a
corporate landlord approach. Continuing that basic premise, this Strategy
identifies a number of separate objectives against which the council's asset
portfolio should be assessed. These are set out below:

ASSET OBJECTIVE CUTCOMES & MEASUREMENT

1. Fit for Purpose & | Enhanced user satisfaction e.g. provision of
compliance with | Customer Service Centres, improved office
Statutory/Regulatory accommodation, determined by undertaking
codes surveys of cusiomers and by undertaking

condition surveys of buiidings and carrying out
works of repair and improvement. Where buildings
are beyond economical repair options for
alternative use or disposal sheuld be considered.
To ensure that all relevant legislation is fully
enforced e.g. DDA Iegislation, Health & Safety,
Asbestos, Legicnella, Fire Safety, NICEIC.

2, Value for Money To ensure that assets deliver value for money,
minimising costs in use and working towards the
development of option appraisals, and whotle lfe




Page 34

costings, maximising return on investment. These
are determined by analysing performance
indicators, undertaking regular  valuation
programmes, working with the AMWG 1o ensure
good option appraisals are in place and that geod
project management techniques are utilised.

3. improved corporate | That in respect of the buildings that it occupies,
management the Council ensures that there is optimum
utilisation of its office space, cross departmental
and partnership working,

4. Sustainability To ensure that ail assets are managed efficienily
and sustainably, in accordance with Councii
policies on climate change, by monitoring, for
example, COZ emissions and the use of green
energy and setling targets for the future. This also
links to objective b below

| B, To serve the Council’s | To identify how asseis can coniribute to the key

key aims aims of the Council as set cut in is annual
Corporate Plan. This will include the need tfo
secure capital receipts to help fund the capital
programme and therefore reduce borrowing, all to
help keep Council Tax levels jocw. In addition
improving the Council's assets will help to meet
customer access reguirements and sustainability
measures, whilst assets wili be acquired where |
schemes are approved by the council to improve
the district. Climate change is also a key aim — see
objective 4 above

6. Enabling Where assets do not meet any of the other
elements of these objectives, {0 use the council's
land and property assets to achieve strategic
devefopment and regeneration cpportunities within
the district. This could be by way of asset transfer
to community groups as envisaged in the Quirk
repoit or alfernatively, where there are no other
Councit priorities, dispesal of assets would provide
a capital receipt that can be ulilised to fund other
Council capitai schemes.

6.0 Performance Management

6.1

6.2

This is critical to achieving ‘successful asset management and can be
evidenced by the reporting of National and Local Key Performance Indicators
(KPls). Condition surveys have been undertaken to provide information on the
outstanding repairs required to Council buildings, whiist also providing
information that advises on Access, lLegionella, Ashestos and Fire Risk
Assessments. This is in response to the growth in the number of statutory
obligations pertaining to asset management in recent years. Data has been
assembled to present a profile of the current state of building assets and is
being used to reinforce asset reviews {refer to Section 11.) and formulate
improvement programmes.

The Cabinet Member for Property Services and the AMWG are responsibie for
ensuring the delivery of the performance targets set in the CSP and in the
Property Service Business Plan. A key part of the performance management
process is to identify any areas of under-performance and agree action plans {o




7.0

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

Page 35

deliver improvements. The Head of Property Services reports performance in
respect of its Service Business Plan on a quarterly basis.

The Resource Context

The council has a track record of robust financial management and a strong
finance function. Value for Money (VFM) has been long embedded in service
and resource pianning.

Target savings are set in the MTFS for the Council as a whole that amount to
£1,053,000 by March 2011 and cumulative savings of £1,302,000 by March
2012. Efficient use and management of assets will play a major role in
achieving these savings, much of which will arise through the Access to
Services Review, working with partner organisations who occupy Council
buiidings, service benchmarking with other councils and sectors, and integrated
financial and performance management arrangements to drive out efficiencies
and savings.

The aims and obiectives of the MTFS are to:

« avoid volatite fluctuations in the provision of Council services and related
annuat levels of Council Tax

e match resources both to demand and to Council priorities
» plan for and respond to any changes in Local Government funding

s provide a basis for informed decision-making acress all Council policies
and activities, underpinned by risk management

e support consultation with stakeholders on a broad range of associated
issues, where appropriate

o support the achievement of efficiency, effectiveness and economy in the
use of the Council's resources, including any associated targets. This
includes:

- maximising efficiency savings and, where acceptable, increase income
protecting front-line services as far as possible, whilst minimising
administration costs, and

- c¢hallenging traditionat methods of service provision.

The Council’'s capital programme is set annually as part of the budget process
but is based on a three year programme and should be considered in
conjunction with this CSP. in 2009/10 the council has committed the following
capital financial resources to its asset management priorities. All these
schemes are funded from either unallocated capital receipts (UCR), borrowing
or grant aid. Much depends upon the availability of capital receipts in times of
recession.



7.5

7.6

8.0

8.1

8.2

Page 36

Property/scheme Asset Objective Budget
The Platform | Fit for purpose £108,000 - All
improvements from UCR or
borrowing.
The Dome - demclition & { Fit for purpose £85,000 - All
emergency works from UCR or
botrowing.
Customer Service | To serve the council's key aims; £16,000 - Al
Centies Improved corporate management worl YER o)
g borrowing.
Corporate & Municipal | Fit for purpose & compliance with | £2.2656m - All
Building works Statutory /Reguiatory codes from UCR or
Sustainability borrowing.
Happy Mount Park | To serve the council's key aims £112.000 - All
Natural Adventure from grant.
Lancaster Hub TIC | To serve the council's key aims; £10000  -AE
Refurbishment Fit for purpose from UCR or |
borrowing.
Storey institute Centre for | Fit for purpose £15000 - Al
Creative Industries from grant

In addition to mainstream capital funds the council also bids for and receives
Challenge Funds {e.g. European Funds, Neighbourhood Renewal Funds etc)
for major regeneration schemes such as Luneside East, and schemes in the
West End of Morecambe.

As an alternative form of delivery, development agreements involving Council
land are used as a method of achieving Council objectives. As an example the
development agreement for a new Morecambe FC stadium will be used to drive
out improved and additional playing pitches for use in the community.

Changes in the External Environment and their Implications for Property

Lancaster district has the fastest growing economy in Lancashire and Cumbria,
contributing £1.7 billion to the Lancashire economy alone. £54m of external
funding secured for local regeneration projects.

Specific achievements that contribute to achieving the Vision Board's economic
strategy are set out below:-

« The emerging Luneside East urban village project will replace
contaminated and derelict land with a mixed development of 300+ housing
units; 80,000 sq ft of modern office space, parkiand and leisure facilities.

e The Council led development of a £27M state of the art office
development in the heart of the City, ‘CityLab’, providing much needed
guality city centre office space.

s A £0.5m capital project to improve industrial access in the Port of Heysham
has supported 100 existing jobs and created a further 180.

»  Funding of £3.5 million has created a Centre for Creative Industries in the
Storey Institute, workspace as well as public galleries, a new
auditorium/conference centre, a bar/café and a new state of the art Visitor



8.3

8.4

8.0

9.1

9.2

Page 37

Information Centre. This has enabled the Council to transfer the building fo
a third party and remove the need for major repairs to be funded from
council budgets.

= The City Council is working jointly with NWDA and Lancaster University to
develop a new science park at Bailrigg adjacent to Lancaster University.
The Science Park is designated as one of the North West's Regional
Strategic Sites where technoiogical spin-out from academic research will
provide an internationally significant contribution to the locai economy,

e The council has a development agreement with developers Centros Miller
for a retail led regeneration of the Canal Corridor North area in central
Lancaster subject to planning permissicn being granted.

e The Midland Hotel in Morecambe has been renovated as part of a wider
development partnership agreement with “Urban Splash™

»  Promenade facilities in the West End of Morecambe have been improved,
including community designed public art and play facilities.

e £1m NWDA funding has supported the development of Carnforth as a
service centre for its wider rural hinterland.

¢ The development of new stadium facilities for Morecambe Foothall Club as
befits their Football League status, including enhanced playing pitches for
the community and a capital receipt to assist in funding the capital
programme

The growth in the district in recent years reflected the economy nationally. The
current recession also has an effect as property disposals are more difficulf to
achieve as restrictions on funding make developers more cautious when
investing.

The council continues to make its non-operational land available to facilitate
development but must balance the need for capital receipts against the
opportunity to see improvement in the district. Transfer of assets to the
community is an option for consideration.

Service Delivery & Accommodation Needs
Overview

The principle of ‘Corporate Property Ownership’ was the main principle adopted
by the council in the 2005 Corporate Property Strategy. This process is based
on the corporate centre providing greater influence over property decisions to
meet wider corporate objectives, partner and area initiatives and at the same
time address service needs. Collective management of these resources
enables a more corperate and proactive approach especially in the light of
shared provision, options for disposal and acquisitions to support regeneration
and maximise potential income from sites deemed surplus.

Council Services

An essential element of the Access to Services process in reviewing councit
services is the consideration of business process re-engineering which requires
a close look at the activities that Services undertake as well as dealing with the
potentiai for property efficiencies. The preparation and review of Service Asset
Management Plans to inform and support the corporate property strategy will



8.3

8.4

2.5

9.6

8.7

9.8

Page 38

assist this process and identify opportunities for rationalisation at individual
Service and authority wide level.

Although most property management arrangements have successfully been
brought into a single base, some are still fragmented where operational
management dictates. It is proposed to procure new maintenance and energy
management arrangements that will enable a more corporate approach to
asset management.

New Working Practices in the Council

The Access to Services Review has received Council approval to relocate the
majority of staff into Lancaster and Morecambe Town Halls, following public
consufiation. Together with the Storey Institute scheme this will result in the
disposal of;

St Leonards House

Palaiine Hall

1 Daltorn Square

56-80 Euston Road

29 Castle Hill (Sold July 2009)
Morecambe Town Hall Cotlage

& & ® & & @

The Review can only be achieved by combining improvement of the buildings
whilst instigating new working practices such as hot desking, home working
and use of improved IT systems such as electronic document management
systems, new telephone systems and improved computer interfaces giving
recognition to the pilot studies for flexible and home working carried out in the
different Services of the Council. By the end of the scheme it is anticipated that
the accommodation ratio wili have reduced from 10.76sq mits per workstation to
closer to 7.5 sq mis per workstation

The first phase of this work involved the move of the Strategic Housing team
from 56-60 Euston Road, Morecambe into Morecambe Town Hall. Hot desking
arrangements have been put in place for all Services who now occupy
Morecambe Town Hall,

As part of this phase, to accommodate the provision of “touch down” areas in
both Town Halis, Councillors have moved out of individual group rooms,
utilising commpon facilities in each building.

Working with Partners to provide/improve accommodation and facilities

The reduction of office space that is a major outcome of the Access 1o Services
Review makes it difficuit to accommodate many partners in  our
accommodation. However, facilities are provided for:

The Registrar

Coastguard

County Council

Pensions Service

External Auditors and Inspectors
Citizens Advice Bureau

& & & 95 & 6



9.9

9.10

9.1

9.12

9.13

Page 39

Discussions are ongoing with the County Councii about how more of their
services can be made availabie from the new Customer Service Centres within
Lancaster and Morecambe Town Halls.

The Council does work closely with other partners to try and facilitate improved
facilities within the district. In particular, the Care Trusts operating within the
district accupy the following Council premises:

«  Moor Lane Mills
¢ St Leonards House
» Ryelands House

Lancashire Constabulary utilise facilities within Lancaster Bus Station

Through the provision of a land disposal process, the Council acts as an
enabler, working with developers to provide new facilities. Examples are:

¢ The Canal Corridor scheme under which the Developer, Centros, will,
subject to planning permission, provide a mixed use development including
new car park and coach park facilties in a modern form to replace the
existing surface level facilities

e Morecambe FC propose to develop a new football stadium at Westgate
and included within the development agreement is the provision of
increased playing pitches which will improve the Football in the Community
programme

# The Courts Service are looking to cenfralise their facilities in the vicinity of
the Lancaster Magistrates Court by acquiring Council land and that would
include the potential for the Crown Court to vacate the Castle premises,
thereby improving not only the overall courts facilities, but also the tourism
potential of the Castle

Arrangements are in hand to meet and share information on a regular basis
with the County Council and PCT to ensure the most efficient use of assets
across the public sector (see paragraphs 4.6 - 4.8 above)

10.0 The Existing Portfolio & Current Performance

10.1

Statement of Portfolio

The council holds a diverse and widespread portfolic of land and property
assets throughout the district which includes operational property (e.g. offices,
administration buildings, leisure centres, visitor information centres, markets
etc.) and non-operational property (e.g. shops, offices, agricultural land,
allotments and garden fenancies etc). The total value of the portfolio as
identified in the council’s accounts amounts to £89.57m excluding the Housing
Revenue Account property. Appendix 1 identifies a schedule of property types
held by the councit.

Asset Type ] Value (E)
Operational Property 48.41m
Non-Operational Property 39.92m




182

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

1C.7

Page 40

Community Assets ] 1.24m

The rationalisation and categorisation of the portfolio is an ongoing process. In
2007/08 the Star Chamber process received a full report on the existing
portfolio, and confirmed those properties to be retained or sold. As
opportunities arise, this review will be amended appropriately.

Current Parformance & Action Plan in relation to the Corporate Asset
Objectives

This section reports on the council's performance in relation to its Corporate
Asset Objectives (as scheduled above) and highlights the council's
performance in respect of its land and property assets over the last twelve
months. The associated key performance indicators are detailed in Appendix 2
and show information for the last three years together with targets for the
current year where applicable. The future Action Plan is detailed in Appendix 3.

| Corporate Asset Objective 1: Fit for Purpose & compliance with

Statutory/Regulatory codes

Survey Programmes - The 2005 Corporate Property Strategy identified the
maintenance and repair, together with the associated Health and Safety
elements, of the Council's property portfolic as a significant issue facing the
Council. Building condition surveys have been undertaken along with defailed
surveys in respect of Legionella risk assessments, fire risk assessments,
asbestos surveys, and access audits.

The information is valuable in supporting the planned maintenance programme,
but it has also been invaluable in improving the position in respect of our
statutory responsibilities. [n respect of asbestos risk, council buiidings now
have asbestos regisiers, and asbestos is being managed in line with the
council's policy on asbestos. Simiiarly council buildings have had their water
systems improved and monitored, and a management system has been
introduced to comply with Legionella policies.

The council has developed and impiemented a formal policy in respect of fire
risk within buildings, and undertaken fire risk assessments for the majority of
buildings. Training of managers has been completed and all staff will be trained
during 2009/10.

Required maintenance — Since the 2005 Corporate Froperty Strategy, a
condition survey of the Council’s main buildings has identified that the cost of
the backiog of repairs amounts fo £11.236m. A property review has also been
undertaken to which the cost of the backlog of repairs has been applied to
identify:

e those buildings which the Council will be retaining e.g. Lancaster and
Morecambe Town Halls,

s those which are to be sold e.g. Oxford Street Garages

= those that are the subject of other schemes which will resuit in their
refurbishment e.g. Storey iInstitute.



Page 41

10.8 That review identified the need for £5.67m to be spent on retained property and
a five year plan has been identified. The Council has included this cost within
the capital programme but is dependent on having the available finance for the
capital programme.

10.9 Access to public buildings - The council’s annual submission in respect of
the former Best Value Performance Indicator (BVPI) 156 reported that 75% of
existing public buildings [falling within the definition of the former BVFI 156]
were fully accessible to and suitable for disabled pecple [in accordance with the
1991 Version of the Building Regulations Approved Document M].

10.10 Access Audits have been completed for all of these buildings and Accessibility
Plans prepared. Capital funding has been included within the funding for the
backlog of repairs programme and when the works are completed over the five
year programme, all buildings should be fully accessibie.

10.11 The Council undertakes these functions with very tight constraints in terms of
staff and budget. A review of the maintenance and energy functions will be
undertaken to ensure efficient operation and reduce the risk to the councit of
failure of these functions.

| Corporate Asset Oblective 2: Value for Money

10.12 Asset Valuations Programme - The council has a five year Asset Valuation
Programme with all assets valued during that period on a rolling programme. In
addition, there has been a complete revaluation of the Council's insurance
valuations.

10.13 Property Performance Benchmarking - The council has demonstrated a
fongstanding commitment to the benchmarking of its assets and property-
related services. National Property Performance Indicators continue to be
benchmarked against the COPROP Property Performance Programme as part
of an exercise organised through the Association of Chief Estates Surveyors
(currently facilitated in the north-west region by Blackburn with Darwen
Council).

10.14 Local indicators are also held to identify performance in a range of areas of
work at a lower level As part of the Performance Review Team (PRT)
programme, Property Services reports on performance quarterly, and at regular
monthly meetings with the cabinet portfolic holder.

10.15 Options appraisal/proiect management - when schemes are proposed that
are linked to assets, the council will work through an options appraisal process.
All reports to the council's cabinet require options to be provided with an
analysis of the risks involved, whilst the technical support requires, where
appropriate, whole life costing in accordance with the council’'s Guide to Whole
Life Costing. This is in turn linked fo the council's LAMP project management
process.

10.16 Working with partners — to progress the opportunity to work with partners
within the LSP to consider the wider issues invoived in asset management
planning within the district,



Page 42

| Corporate Asset Obiective 3: Improved Corporate Management

10.16 Access to Services Review — This involves implementing, an office
accommodation strategy and rationalising the amount of space used by
individual staff. The current space utilisation rate is 10.74 sg mis per
workstation and it is aimed to reduce this to 7.5 sg. mis. per workstation by the
end of the project, anticipated to be in 2011. This would provide a 30%
reduction in office space with the conseguent operational savings. In the
absence of major funding, this timescale is likely 1o be delayed but small scale
improvements will be made where funds allow, initially to attempt {o allow all
staff to vacate St Leonards House.

10.17 Asset data systems - The council utilises the TechnologyForge database fo
keep records of the property portfolic. The data is being reviewed In
2008/09(7?7?7) to ensure that it contains accurate data on its efficiency,
effectiveness, and asset value, which can be used to support degcision making
on investment and disinvestments in property. it also needs to support new
requirements, such as those under International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS).

[ Corporate Asset Objective 4: Sustainability

10.18 Lancaster has established a Climate Change Cabinet Liaison Group to advise
on and monitor responses o global, as well as local environmental challenges.
The council has published both a Climate Change Strategy and a Sustainability
Strategy and the CPS aims to support the work of the Climate change Cabinet
liaison group and to support implementation of actions in the In-house Climate
Change Strategy.

10.19 The council’s Energy Management Strategy published in 2005 is being
completely reviewed in 2009-10 with the aim of preducing a Carbon
Management Plan for the following three years. This will be based upon survey
information that has been being prepared via the Carbon Trust and reflect the
requirements of the Carbon Reduction Commitment.

10.20 Since October 2008 public sector occupiers of larger buildings wili need to
display a Display Energy Certificate (DEC) in a prominent place, clearly visible
to the public. The DEC indicates the energy performance of a building based
on actual energy consumption and must show the “asset rating” of the building,
which is a numerical indicator of the amount of energy estimated to meet the
different needs associated with a standardised use of the building. These are
expressed graphically on an A-G scale.

10.21 Approximately 12 buildings with a useable floor area of 1000m2 or more are
affected by this legisiation and the relevant certificates will be kept up to date.

In addition an Energy Performance Certificate (EPC) is required on the sale or
new letting of a commercial property that is over 50m2 with its own heating
system. Arrangements are in place to procure these certificates when required.



Page 43

\ Corporate Asset Objective 5: To serve the council's Key Alms J

10.22 Capital receipts - The budget set for 2009/10 sets out a three year capital
receipts programme to be raised from the disposal of surpius fand and
property.

s 2009/10 - £7,075,000
e 2010/11 - £1,220,000
e 201112 - £995,000

10.23 This is largely based on the disposal of a small number of sites which require
planning permission for development. Careful monitoring of the deveiopment
process is required together with communication with Financial Services to
allow budgets to be adjusted as required. Progress on receipts is reguiarly
monitored by the AMWG and the quarterly PRT monitoring process.

10.24 To reflect the importance of capital receipts, the Council approved a Disposal
Strategy in March 2009,

10.25 Review of Assets - This work was undertaken in January 2008 and reported
to the Council's Star Chamber. Minimal numbers of assets were identified for
disposal, whilst opportunities previously identified for disposal were included
within the capital programme. There is a programme of challenge that enables
review of asset disposals to take place.

| Corporate Asset Objective 6: Enabling ,

10.26 Cne of the basic elements of the asset management process and which
underpins this Strategy, is that challenge and review of use, provision and
performance of property is seen as a positive approach to ensuring that assets
are fit for purpose and that retention, investment and utilisation is focussed on
the needs of the customer and the achievement of the council's corporate
objectives. From this principle, consideration is therefore given to the disposal
of any property that is no longer required for the purpose of providing council
services and meeting the requirements of the Corporate Plan. As a result it is
therefore considered appropriate to use the council’s land and property assets
to achieve strategic deveiopment and regeneration opportunities within the
district.

10.27 The following schemes arise frbm this principal where the Council has entered
into disposals by way of land sales, Development Agreements or lease:

Canal Corridor scheme

Central Promenade Development
Morecambe FC Stadium development
Land at Scotforth

& @ @& &

11.0 Review & Chalienge

11.1 As identified in the Corporate Asset Objectives (Objective 8) challenge and
review of use, provision and performance of property is seen as a positive
approach to ensuring that assets are fit for purpose and that retention,



11.4

Page 44

investment and utilisation is focussed on the needs of the customer and the
achievement of the council’s corporate objectives. This statement is seen as an
underlying principle of the CP3.

This review and challenge process will be provided by:

e Property services staff in their daily professional work.

s  The AMWG as part of the strategic overview of asset management.

e The LSP as part of the wider view of the use of assets by public bodies in
the district.

e Council Members in considering reports on assets and as part of the
performance management process.

The City Council is a limited user of propetty compared to metropolitan, unitary
or county councils. As a result many Services do not requirg property other
than the office accommodation for their staff. Suitability and sufficiency surveys
were undertaken as part of the gap analysis to determine Service
requirements. These surveys identified Service requirements that have now
been incorporated into the council's Access to Services Review.

Service Asset Management Plans

All council Services prepared initial service asset management pians to cover
the period 2008-2010. Many of the requirements of these plans were identified
in the Access to Services Review, whilst other elements have been included in
the council's capital programme or cther areas of the council’s review process.

As part of the CPS and the Access to Services Review, the items identified in
the service asset management plans will be the subject of further review to
highlight any new issues and/or opportunities that have arisen in the
intervening period. In particular, this will cover the extent of service change
underway or planned for the medium term.

Appendix 1 -~ Current property holdings

Appendix 2 — Performance Indicators

Appendix 3 — Action Plan

Appendix 4 — Disposal Strategy (as approved by Cabinet in March 2009 therefore

excluded from these papers)

Appendix 5 - AMWG Terms of Reference

20



Page 45

Appendix 1
Current Property Hoidings
Type Number of Comments
buildings or plots
Commercial Premises - Retail 41 includes shops on Housing
estates, Promenade cafes etc
| Commercial Premises — 17 Includes premises at
industrial Luneside East waiting
i development
Commercial Premises - Office 14 Inciudes CityLab, Storey
institute & St. Leonards
House
Commercial Premises - other 9 Inciudes The Dome, Dukes
Playhouse, Community
centres ,
Public Open Space (POS) 154 Various plots
Land 605 Includes open spaces not
designated as POS
Car Parks 52 Inciuding land let for parking
Garage & Garage sites 61 Largely on Housing estates
Changing Rooms 3 Provided on playing fields
| Cycleway/Footpaths 19 Plots that form part of the
main cycleway
Adopted Highway 92
River Defence Walls 2
Market Halls 2
Agricultural fand 10 Including land held for
cemetery extensions
Allotment sites 14
i Municipal Buildings 4
Depots 3
Museums 3
Cemetery/Churchyard 8 Including dis-used
churchyards
Public Conveniences 22 inciuding those recently
closed
| Sports Centre/Swimming Pool 4 .
Residential Property 15 Largely held in advance of
schemes in Morecambe West
End “
Bus Station 2
Pumping Station/\Water 3
Treatment Plant
| Foreshore Promenade 13
| Septic tanks (or sites of) 16 , Adjacent to Housing Estates
Miscellaneous 13 tncluding bus shelters, play

pitches, buildings in
Williamson Park etc

21



Page 46

!
o

£
p.bai 1oN %GLG z
%41 1Z %BEL' LT 9%2.°92 %Z/L 9T %UEZ L1 %S VT %99°¢Z %6295 L
%y6 8¥ %18 LY %B0 Lt %60 LY %PE8Y %585 St %2 SF %96 L& ‘91 stoas) Aiuoud w
%8Z CT %.0'6Z %6192 %6192 %EY 0T %9967 %L '0g 0 o, B SB 9DUBUMIRW
VIN jo Bopjoeg
¥
¢
p,bal joN 051 L623 z
PEEECL'ZI | ¥BB'BCL'TI | PBB'8EL'ZI | ¥6B'8ELZI 05Z'v8e3 002 9LL3 0GL'GLL3 576'8¥8'C3 L
CGG'BG'CT | ESG'BOLET | £EG'B9L'ET | EGGROLCE | 0ZF 08 LF | OZE'8LELF | 0TLBBELTF  00GLEHL3 8njeA {810} Ag
LGZ'e6L'LF | Z89'9/6'LT | £60'960ZF | £B0'960TI STASAN X 0.1°8583 0LL'CLBF 0 15090 Ag sourudLIRW
YN jo Bopjoeg
%el L d %EL L
%BLYZ D %8% 9D
%60 7. g %Z 259 YBEBOr —~ D | %BEBIP — D
%0V %0 %9605 —9 | %9606 9
[euoneiad( | [euonessdQ N ANA %ZL'ZV
-UON ~UON reucneiado | jeuonelado
%921 1 %92 10 -UCN -UoN
U8y EG O %FFEE-D | %BLBZ-D | %BLBZ—D
%296l g %09 ¥¢-g %ETVE—Y | %EZRE -4 a
%BS BT Y %0LOEY | %BGTE-VY | %8G TE-VY 5)
[euoiRIad( jeuoneiadQ [BUoRIBG0 jeucneladg =
%Lz 1ad % L7 10 p.baujoN %910 v
%&LEr D %LZ 88D %9'GE %9'GE %08 ¢t %y EY %P0 ey %Z8'E 1sauobsies
%ZL 98 d %y6 0v-g %E9 Ty Y%EQ 2y %96 7€ %50 9€ %6068 %698 uoRIPUOod
%EB'8L W %5961V %26 LT %G LT %z LE %802 %/8°0Z %256 ut aoeds-looy
EaulgLuIoD pauIquIc) PalIquIoD psuiquicd YIN jeuEalll ss0ib o/
£0/8002 80/200Z £0/906G2 90/500Z S0/P002 y0/S00Z £0/Z00Z Z0/100Z LO/000Z 101221pU|

SIOJEIIPU| asueWIclIad — 7 Xipusddy

SHOLVIIAN] 3ONVINNHOdddd SADIAYES ALYdd0dd




Page 47

%820}

%8 'L

%l98

%lSY

%G6E ¢

%GL T

%C9 ¢

%G1

%L

10 %, B SE SIEally

%ZL0'Z0L

%2501

%Eel 16

%2 V0L

%t €01

%Zl L0

%62 601

VIN

%5686

slucoul pajosiold jo
o, B SB a0t jenjoy

%BEZ LT

%8G9

B/N

g/N

%G9 101

%55 GF

%< 95

%0t

%S9 6%

paasIuoe Ajjenioe
sidizoal reudeo 1o o

%00}

%001

E/N

E/N

%99911

%0G¢

%8 '¥8

%0L

%S.

paAsiyoR
ueld |esodsip JO %

%EY 8

%690L

%re6l

%l s

%l 0L

%l6LE

%G L't

%y 22

%6 9¢

Jesea Auaung |
20edsi00}] JO 9, |

%SL

%GL

%G L

%5,

%54

%94

%64L

%64

%l

‘grdoad

pogesip 0} 8/gissasoe
puE J0j 8/qeuns ale
sease ognd jie yoym
i ongnd sy o1 usdo
sbuipyng Aoyne

Jjo abglusaiad sy f

BiOLO

GioL'0

E¥OL 0

9980 °C

9800

[ASZACRY

86600

68800

N

-t “bs sod apixoip |

uogIes 10 SSUL0)
Ui SUOISSIS ZOD

¥ €3

L0E3

78 &3

¥8'23

S¥¢

9v'T3

BS'13

L4713

YIN

(¥io} 1w
‘bs Jad 1500 J9)BAA

60°2C3

L 63

96913

89 113

858

G383

6.3

c0 33

VIN

{leny
PIICS ‘{10 '211109]8
‘sen) (vID) wwrbs
tod s}son Abusug

0gel3

98'vl3

B vi3

88°GL3

cS'Gl

yel3

£9'913

8893

W/IN

{v19) 3w "bs sad
51507 9oUBUSUIBH
pue seday

%9TL

%ZB L

%iL8

%S L

%80 L

%ZP'8

%18

Yo¥Z L

YiIN

|einynouby

liejoy

[eiysnpuj isojjoiiod
Buimoi|o} ays jo uses
10} (dyi} uinias jo
oiei abeioae |jRiBAD

4




Page 48

v

S10]1E21pUl 20| 24e sioieoipul Buluewa: sy
‘0G| JOIBDIPU| 20UBLLIONSH BNEA 1Sag JaULI0) BU] ) SDI[R) L Jo)eaipy|
sue|d Juswusbeueyy 19ssy Ui paiiuspl AjjzuIbiio sioedipUl JBUOIEU, JC 31INS 8L jo Led ale piog Ul SI0jEsipU|

%9¢ L

%E8 L

Y%ll'8

Y%S¥ L

%80 L

YA

%l'8

S¥T L

Y%l

oljojLiod JstiIsaALl
Jo @oueLIicHad

8ceL

¥Z:9.

legl

B/N

L2€L

ViIN

0508

7N

v/N

aouRUSILIEL BAIOES]
01 pauuzid jo oeyY

%169

%489

%c0'9

%G9S

%65 '€

%9t 2

%t

%89'¢

%S8'C

198png anuasa; |B10}
10 o, SEB aunypuadxs
BoUBUBILIEIN

auwiooUl payoslod




Page 49

wy
i

SLUQOING DUE

AT Ul SDUBDRIODOE

12yl sBuiping jo siaglunu ayy asesisy|

00 B 10 SULSY U Sewsyss eudes it UBRELBDUTN ziE

30 uswebeusw JUBIDUS  BINSUS O Buebuo AN paydops ABoiopoulews QY | stosloid B IBG 2Insus o

paye:p Abeyeng Ausdaig SINSEAL

$aM8lg0 1888y sI0dion B 0 apIcticny  pesiasy  etejd  w Buuciuow | acupuuousd dojenen

aig  s@sse  Auadoid 184l edushiag Bucliug odoidy | ANsuEnh  Ixd eoRid W uBlg  SSBUISNE | ABNUNUCD DUR MaIABL O

B suGHEN|2A

sampanoid 13%se 10 awweiBoud

Bununoooe ypm aoueidwiod ansus oL 5007 UMEW LD SOl H Fep 03 pe1eIdulos SUCHENIBA [BNUUE Iy e Syeuspun o

Asuoyy 10} aniep o7 aanosiyn 1essy awesodion

HNIUNGD B

jlounoo Uiy suonount  Alleus

SU) O} SHSH By A0NDS! puB SUOHoUNY [2UNCO B4 DSIADE 01 palulodds SJUBLNSUOD | puB  aoueusiuiEll &)

24 1o uopelsedc USIDIYR SUNSUS o gLOE yoiew gdoidi | pue peacoud O pRUBGC eacldde JBULIGED | IO MBIABL B DYELIBDUR O
GL/800¢

10 Jopenh jBul W osouswiwoo o] ejeucibe | ssioncd Alsies g uiesy B

uoneisiBe) upa souduon 3MsUs 0 0407 uniap QUOI4M | CABAISDUN JIDNE SOISSOSE  puE  APIES Ddld | J0 upne ue 239iduion 0}

saayod peaonsdde Yl 30URDRICODE S H N slg] oauigil Ussq ABies iy ol

U ABjes suy o SSSUBIEME  BunSulg QLOT uDiBp Asieg | oaBy suspiesm sy pue sisbeusw Alales sy oy | piebsr ylis 4es ue uBig

uewisbeuei S1800 WHLUOD O $H0M 188png OL/BR07 JC

jesse pur ouwlweibord eudes sy o susBun Jop pesedesd ucpEuBWwINDOp Jspusl | sisos oepdn pue siedas

yoeordde mbsipns pue gjeiodion alow v | 8007 JBquuenag cdoidi | 1BUGED G007 ISGUIBSADN J0; pauedaid Lodsy | o swweiboid 8yl mainey

51500 siiedal

whiey Buol aonpas pue asodind oy aue sunuesboid sepdes w | 1o Bopoea o swweiboid

BuobBun gdoidy | peonpul siafong ewidwos Agains UOIIPUOD 2 o¥BlUapun o

sapoo AojeinBayAioinmels wim asueljdwion B asoding 104 34 | aanzelgn 19ssy sriodion

SWOHNY PRULLHY

areey ebBiey

BUME ASRL

iej o8 ssaiborg

¥sep

ugld uonay — ¢ xipuaddy

NV 1d NOILOV ADILVHLS ALHAd0¥dd 1VEOdH0D W3l INNIaIN




Page 50

poyhiuan segunuoddo JeisuiyEsodsip
% uonEsiEuonE; Auadold

spaay AJUNUILICD pue |
1ounos Yioq BulAmnusp:
‘oiopucd Aupadosd ounod

siease Buiouad epun AJBUsSpr ol tuebun Sdoidk po07 Aenugp Ul poiidulon MIAS) IBLILY | DU MEAS mBpun dBed G|
TENDGE . swiueibod
ws se swswannbar swweiboid epdes sidieoas eudeD
SHOUNDD  B8W O} sjgeieaR  Buipung 5007 U2IBR Sd0idH ainpalos s1is0a Y U DBLHUSDI S81LSdGId OL/BONT BUI SABIYDE G
sy A9y S HDUNOD Byl 8AISS 01 ¢ aannelun 1essy eieinding
ENGY SRIBLCIT
15 Bunesea y4g1s U
siseydius uB yiim MdIAaY
SIE00 puB ‘pios 8BEN0T HLA PRIRORA | SB0IAIRS 01 88300
syowainbar Afieus 800 Sonped 01 . RO0Z BB CdoidH | SBiUsdoud pEOYM USOlY DUB DEOM HOISNT | Wl UUAM  Bnujuod  Of
USWHIILLOD
sindine 1500 pue uogied wog Suonpad pounbal LUOHONDEY UOTIED
siustuzimbal sauesiBa) W O BuoBup cdoidH | 52 dnosn uosiel sbueyn slBwyD OF SUoUSy ayy oy asedeid of
Aupgemeisng 1y 2a09iq0 19ssy opiodio]

. warshs welsbeusi |
nouod suy 10 wswebeuBy IG] BABIEAR 19SSE 41 oul Wi 2IeDh su
S1 USHBULOM SIBINDOR JBUL SiNSus 0} 0107 ynien GH0sdH awedluos YDNE BlBp B5R0 JBSB0UBT | 0 JDNE Ug BLeDUN O
BBNOH SDIBLCDT
15 Dumeoea YEIS U0
siseytilia Us M MBIADY
pios sBepos HW PRIBDRA | $BOIMSS 0] SSeIE
202ds 010 (0 2SN WUBIDIS BIOW 0107 youeiy odoidr | seuadoid peod LSOy DUB PEOM  UGISNT | 8Ul UpM  Bnupuod ot
uswabeuey steiodion paaciduy g sanoalqo 1wssy ajeiodion
457 841 jo souepinD
ISUISIR SU LIHM SIDSSE 101085 oignd oL JBpUN DIBOQ $195SE
HE 10 UBWBhEUBLE JUSIOYS 3INSUS O 002 UdIB 1E lusBaninn poyrip Aboeas Auedaid aieiodioD pasiaey | 303008 oygnd 2 dn 188 O

ABojopousul




Page 51

‘saagoaigo
@IRiodioD  SASUnoD @y spoddns
wewaieusi: 19558 18U S0UBDIAS 0L

paaibe

endisLedns  yUOSoDS 30y jesodsip puel
DUIBLDS 1587 apisaun ot painbowg pust
WAUIHODADD )4 BOUIBDSION

o snmd ur uswessBy  weowdownrag

JOLISID U UILIM

szaoelago  uoneisuelal
pue awdopasp
xbsiens BASILUDE

pletiii=le] sipsodoid | o1 siesse Ausdoxd pue

au; W Awedsosd B ymouB Dnuou003 fuicbuo Sonidy | JopuicD  BUBRD UL PAPNIoUL  pUBL  {IOUNDD | PUB| B0UNGS By} BSh O
T B4 UIND awaneiboid

195 se sjuswelinbal swweiboid pudes sichiaos: jEpden
SUOuUNoD @B 01 s|gepEar Duipundg 007 Yorel SdoidH sinpauns 510i909Y 4 DOLALUSE! soedold | 0L/B007 Bl aasune o}
paynuap: samunuoddo ogopiod

|esodsip g uogesjRuonR:  Ausdoid Auadoud 5 [IoUN00
siasse Duiunopsd sspun Aguapi o] Buicbug SO0 gnoz Adenuer i pR19Idwoo MSIASI [BRIL] | S1) MOIA3S JBpUn deay o
Buygeun 19 sanneigD Jessy sniodion

SslaUNs parnbay

uclizisuals:  poacudde  spEmne; 04 Buobup gdoidgH sgenese & Buipury ausuym Suiobug | eusum s1esse annboe o
Abaens

iesodsip paacadde s\

Ui U st siyy papiacid

‘suonesiebio ABUnUwIGT

DRIBDISUOD BB AUNWLUDD B 10 uonziepisuos of peybyuby Bueg 1 FDSUBS 1BSSE IBDISUOD
siusluannbas Auedoid sl 1B BMsUB 0 BuioBun cdoidi | sdnoif Ayunuwios o siesodsip aipos BUg o1 ‘meudoidde sisypa




Page 52

Appendix 5 - AMWG Terms of Reference

A e P
EMERT WORKING GROUP

TERMS OF REFERENCE

PURPOSE OF THE GROUP:

Provide strategic advice and guidance on the best use of Council assets to the
Performance Management Group and The Executive, as necessary.

in fulfiling its responsibilities the Group will take account of:

Strategies, policies, initiatives and targets, particularly the Council's Financial
Regulations and Precedures and Contract Procedure Rules

Best practice in asset management

The standards and principles sets out in Lancaster City Council's Approach to
Project Management (LAMP)

SPECIFICALLY THE GROUP WILL:

1.

2.

Keep under review the strategic management of the Council’s land and property
assets

Contribute to the development, monitoring and review of the Council’s Corporate
Property Strategy (incorporating the Asset Management Plan) and its overall
Capital investment Strategy

Keep under review all of the council’s land and property holdings to ensure that
they support the aims and objectives set down in the Corporate Plan

To monitor and review the capital receipts schedule
To monitor and review service asset management plans

Assess the impact of major corporate drivers on the council’s asset portfolio and
make appropriate recommendations for change

To keep under review the condition of the council’s property and make
recommendations for its improvement including seeking to ensure that sufficient
funding is available

To keep under review programmes of work relating to energy management within
the municipal buildings as approved by the Climate Change Cabinet Liaison
Group

Oversee the capital programme in so far as it affects the council's property
portfolio, ensuring that any works undertaken are in accordance with the Medium
Term Corporate Property Strategy, are in line with Service asset management
pians and access to services proposals, and ensuring that relevant links are in
place for the work of the Corporate Programme Management Group

28



Page 53

[BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL]

2010/11 Budget Update
24" November 2009

Report of Corporate Director (Finance & Performance) and
Head of Financial Services

1 To note progress so far on the current year's budget position and in identifying |
i options for savings and efficiencies for inclusion in the 2010/11 draft budget}

! proposals. To note the latest positipn on the council’s § year capital pregramme.

OFFICER RECOMMENDATIONS:

1 That Cabinet notes the revenue budget position to date regarding the current
year and its potential implications.

2 That Cabinet notes the progress made by individual Cabinet Members to identify
savings and efficiency options from within their portfolios included as Appendix
A, and determines those that should be supported or developed further.

3 That Cabinet notes the latest position is respect of the Council’s Capital
Programme.

REPORY
1 Introduction

Since the last Cabinet meeting, individua! cabinet members have confinued to meet
with officers to develop savings and efficiency options in line with the programme
agreed on 01 September 2009 (minute 44(1) refers). Work has continued to review
the variances arising from the 2008/9 closure of accounts and also those highlighted
as part of the second quarter's Performance Review Team exercise, which is still
ongaing.



Page 54

Current Year Revenue Position

With regard to the current year, the Appendix highlights that from the information
available so far, there is potentially a sizeable net overspending in the current year.
This is after providing for estimated losses in connection with Icelandic investments.
As at Quarter 1, the monitoring indicated that it may be possible to cover these
through VAT windfalls and other unbudgeted net savings. From the information
available so far for Quarter 2, however, it would appear that the position has
deteriorated quite significantly. One reason for this is that not all of the savings
approved as part of the current year's budget have been achieved actually in this
year.

This position has implications for the Council's Use of Resources, both practically
and through future assessment:

- Once the Revised Budget exercise has been completed fully, any remaining
deficit in this year will have to be financed, either by transferring funds earmarked
for other purposes (with those purposes being put on hold or canceiled), or as a
last resort, by reducing revenue balances . This would have an adverse effect on
the Council's standing. In turn, this would simply increase the budget pressures
for 2010/11, as there is no indication that the minimum level of balances will
reduce (if anything, it is more likely to increase). Another report on this agenda
makes reference to seeking a capitalisation directive regarding lcelandic
investment losses, which could help spread these costs over a number of years.
The outcome is by no means certain though and if unsuccessful, the Council will
have to make full up-front revenue provision for estimated losses at some point.

- The failure to meet any approved savings should change behaviour for the future
to ensure that as far as possible this situation does not recur. The iessons learnt
could be relatively simple measures and the Council’s response will influence the
$151 Officer's views on minimum balances and on affordability of spending plans
/ robustness of estimates.

Future Years’ Revenue Position

For 2010/11 onwards, budget options that have been identified since the last
meeting, up to the time when this report was produced, have now been included in
the schedule attached at Appendix A. Cabinet is asked to identify those options that
they wish to support at this stage, for inclusion in the list to be used for the budget
consultation exercise, and those that they would wish to be developed further.

This agenda also includes a number of reports that have financial implications for
future years and these have been included in Appendix A on the basis of the reports’
recommendations.

Elsewhere on this agenda is an update covering the Council Tax targets included
within the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy, as weil as other related
strategies. These will be used to inform and guide the Council through this year's
budget process and Cabinet should note that the first draft of the revised 3 vyear
revenue budget will be presented o the Cabinet in December. In view of the work
ongoing, and the amount of information still uncertain or outstanding, it has not
proved possible to provide a more comprehensive update at this stage. Nonetheless,
consideration of draft budgets for both General Fund and Housing Revenue Account



Page 55

(HRA) before Christmas should give Members more time for developing budget
proposals and form a reasonable basis for consultation. There is one caveat
regarding the HRA however, in that the timing of subsidy announcements is crucial.
This is because at present, following the changes in rent increases for the current
year, expectations for future subsidy are even less clear than usual,

With regard to corporate planning, Cabinet have continued to meet informally to
review the latest information on how the existing revenue and capital budgets are
aliocated across the Council's current corporate priorities, support services, and non
priorities. Cabinet are also to meet on 03 November to review the headline
messages reported by Ipsos/Mori at their recent presentation. This information will
be used by Cabinet in their review of the current policy framework documents,
including the Corporate Plan priorities, and a revised version of the Corporate Plan
will be presented to Cabinet in December.

Capital Programme Update

In terms of capital, there is little to add at this stage to the comments included
elsewhere on the agenda. The key points are as follows:

- In light of the current inquiry into the Town Green application, the sale of receipts
from land at South Lancaster has been delayed until 2010/11; these
assumptions will be updated in light of information on how the inquiry is
progressing.

- Price increases are being experienced on the municipal building works
programme, most notably on roofing. Action has been taken to progress these
and other essential ceiling and electrical works and whilst at present, these can
be contained within existing budget allocations, there will be a need to increase
the budgets over the coming years. Clarity is being sought regarding whether the
cost pressures will fall as capital or revenue. A separate report on this issue is
now scheduled for December Cabinet.

The outcome of the preliminary lands fribunal hearing regarding Luneside is
expected in early December. An update on this and the legal costs position is
aiso scheduled for December Cabinet.

- In addition, an update on the West End Exempiar Scheme and Chatsworth Road
proposals will also be presented to Members during the budget process.

Some relatively minor stippage on other schemes has been identified in the
current year. Overali though, a gap in funding can be reasonably expected in
2009/10, which would need to be covered through an increase in borrowing need
(known as the Capital Financing Requirement). This should be only on an interim
basis, but this is dependent upon the sale of land at South Lancaster ultimately
going ahead.

- In relation to potential new capital pressures, at the last Cabinet meeting
Members resolved that for allotments, the Parish Council Funding Task Group be
requested to include in its report consideration of how non-parished allotments
might be funded by special expenses. It is important to note that special
expenses is not a mechanism for raising funds as such —~ it is a mechanism for
adjusting Council Tax bills to reflect who should pay for providing such funding.
Any costs of providing investment must first be financed either out of the



Page 56

Council's capital resources if appropriate, or through the revenue budget. Clearly
these are constrained by the Prudential Code or capping etc ~ and these
constraints ignore any subseguent application of special expenses. Based on
current pressures, it is difficult to see that in the short term, the Council will be in
a position to invest in allotments. Nonetheless, in light of Cabinet's full
resolutions for this function, consultation around “who should pay?” will be
developed by officers for inclusion in the budget process, taking account of any
allocation policies used by allotment associations. The outcome can then be fed
into any future propcsals or arrangements.

A more comprehensive capital update is scheduled for December Cabinet, to be
considered alongside the revenue position. Any changes to the financing of the
Capital Programme are likely to add to the pressures on the Revenue Budget for
future years.

5 Options Analvsis

The following options are available {o the Cabinet.

Revenue Budget Update:
Consider the savings and efficiency options included at Appendix A for
inclusion in the Cabinet’s draft list of recommendations, highlighting those that
can be supported and those that may need further work.

il Consider the savings and efficiency options included at Appendix A but offer
no view at this stage on those for inclusion in the Cabinet's draft list of

recommendations.

Preferred Option

The preferred option is option 1. This will ensure that officers are clear which options
are to be considered further and those that require further work, including any impact
and risk assessments. This will also provide an on-going position summary of the
savings and efficiencies position.

No other options are presented for the other matters covered in this report as they
are for information only.

{ RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK

{ The report provides an update of how Cabinet are progressing in meeting the targets and |
timescales in respect of this year's budget process included in the Council's Budget and |
il Policy Framework.

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT

{including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability etc)
I None directly arising from this report at this stage.

| FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
in the main, these are referred to within the report.




Page 57

¥ Options for savings and efficiencies identified in Appendix A are estimates at this stage and '
8 if supported will be worked up further as the proposals are developed and reported back to |
i Cabinet. ;

§ DEPUTY SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS i
¥ The Deputy 8151 Officer has been consulted and has no comments o add at this stage. |

I LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

{ MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS
¥ The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments.

il BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Roger Muckie
§ None. | Telephone: 01524 582022
' | E-mail: rmuckle@lancaster.gov.uk :




Page 58

APPENDIX A

STATEMENT OF GENERAL FUND SAVINGS POSITION
For consideration hy Cabinet 10 November 2009

APPROVED SAVINGS INCLUDED IN 3 YEAR REVENUE BUDGET

The tabies in this Appendix provide the following information :

TABLE 1 - This shows the latest position on the overall savings approved at Budget Council on 04 March 2009, These are savings
are already incorporated Into the budget, howaver & number were subject to confirmation or Member approval.

TABLE 2 - This shows the latest budget position against the projected MTFS savings targets, taking account of quaniified base
hudget savings or proposals The MTFS targets assume a 4% increase in Council Tax year on year, and thal Government suppaort
will increase by 2.4% in 2010/11 and 2% in 2011112,

TABLE 3 - This wdentifies potential budget! changes and options that still need 1o be quantified.

The budget position is constantly changing and in order o track these changes against previous
Cabinet reports, "Updated” or "New" items are highiighted at the right hand side.

TABLE 1 N ??3)2510 2010111 29201£12
Sudget Council 04 March:2009) -~ | 3873 A 4448
BAVINGS EFFECTED IN BASE BUDGETY -1,607.0 -688.0 -1.022.88  Updated
BAVINGS APPROVED BY MEMBERS TO DATE
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 26 MARCH 09 : Corporate Strategy Restructure -30.0 222 2230
Sub-Fotal -1,837.0 +1,045.8
SAVINGS STILL TOBE ACHIEVED 3503 3880

SAVINGS STILL TO BE CONFIRMED / SUBJECT TO FURTHER MEMBER APPROVAL

Senior Management Restructure -50.0}:

Corporate Strategy

Service Restruciure (Batance of saving to achieve} ! B4 . R

Communications & Marketing Review atn| o ol v | B
Revenues

Council Tax & Hsg. Benefit : (Balance of combined savings ta achigve) -21.9 -25.3 266

Cuitural Services

Reduction in support for Festivals Innovation Fund Events -30.0

Arts & Leisure Development -54.0
Platining Services

Achievernent of Break-even for Buliding Cantrat (reduction in staffing / increase in fees) ~145.4
Property Services

Yenue Hirg Lo break sven 100

Sub-Total -350.3

CABINET 06 OCTOBER 09 : Community Engagement and Regen. & Folicy Services

. 35030 -t084

* Note that the savings figures shown above for Community Engagement and Regeneration and Policy Services are
only indicative at this stage - there is much work to finalise them. That said, it is anticipated that the proposals for
these services will cover many of the other approved savings items, highlighted in grey.

There will be other approved budget savings that have been achieved to date, or are on line to be so, but are stil

dependent on further progress in the remainder of the year,

GAPuBEZE 0201 'Eudget and Planaing ProcessiSavings and THicisncy ReviewtSUMPARY SAVINGS POSITION 2902008



Page 59

APPENDD A

IMPACT (SO FAR) OF OTHER APPROVALS, AND QUANTIFIED BUDGET
CHANGES OR PROPOSALS

1] 2
TABLEZ [ m
WTFS PROJE NGSTARGETS T esan) 0
é BUDGET CHANGES APPROVED AFTER BUDGET COUNCIL
PERSONNEL COMMITTEE 30 JULY 09 : Management Team P& Support -25.0 -30.8 -3t.4
CABINET URGENT BUSINESS 13 JULY 09 : Civil Parking Enforcement -8.0 -8.0 -8.0
Additionai CPE savings identified -18.0 -38.7 -39.5
ITEMS SUBJECT TO FURTHER APPROVAL
COUNCIL 2% APRIL 03 : Winter Gardens (Growth) +150.0 +150.0
CABINET 06 OCFOBER 09 :
Youth Gaines (Growth) 0 +7.0 +15,9 New
Alletments {Growth) 4} +8.0 +8.0 New
Shared Services - Revenue Services g -80.0 -80.0 Hew
Sub-Total -52.0 +1.5 +14.1
QTR 1 CORPORATE FINANCIAL MONITORING
Salary Savings -185.0
Main Service Variances -43.0 !
VAT Reimbursement -600.0 i
Frovision for icelandic investiment losses +1201.0
Pay Award Savings -200.0 -204.0 -208.0

QTR 2 CORPORATE FINANCIAL MONITORING

Service Restructure savings not achioved or identified (see previous table) +350.3 +108.4 +106.0 Updated
Building Regulatian Fees +174.0 New
Flanning Application Fees +100.0 : New
Car Parking Permiis +43.0 Mew
Vehicle Maintenance (very provisionat and subject to clanificalion) -100.0 -100.0 -100.0 heenwr
Main servica variances (very provisionat and subject to clarification) +50.0 hew
Feod Waste : Delayed implementalion date -70.0 Naw
Sub-Total +730.3 ~265.6 -202.0
* 2008103 OUTTURN VARIANCES PROJECTED TO CONTINUE
cems
Public Conveniences (Operational savings on current provisian) 5.3 6.3 Naw
Demgcratic Services
Demacratic Representation Expenses - Overview & Sorutiny Expenses -2.0 2.0 2.6
Information & Customer Services
information Services 240 -24.0 -34.0
Customer Services RRrat et By
i Financial Services
: Software { Banking Savings {provisional estimate) -20).0 -20.0
Sub-Total -33.0 -59.3 -68.3
OTHER SAVINGS AND EFFICIENCY OPTIONS
Corporate
Climate Change |nitialives {Growth | Elsewhere on this agenda} ; +20.0 Mew
Cuitural Services
Highfleld Rec Ground : Loss of remnt (Eisewhere on this agenda) +0.4 +0.4 New
ccms
Future Provision of Public Tolets {Elsewhersa on this agenda) -60.0 -66.0 New
Corporate Strategy
Chiidren & Young People 5.0 £.0 -6.0 New
Finanttal Services
Provisional Staffing Savings from minor restructuring -8.0 -15.0 -15.0
More efficient use of BACS 5.0 8.0 Mew
Revenue Sarvices
Racovery of Legal Gosts -100.0 -100.0 New
Review of Printing & Despatch Procedures ~8.0 0.0 New

Sub-Total -11.0 -194.6 -180.6

TR

* NOTE : This wilt be completed in producing the detailed draft budget.

GAPuRliAZ010-201 1'8udget and Planning Pracass\Savings and Efficency ReviewdSUMMARY SAVINGS POSITION 20ea0a



Page 60

APPENDIX A

OTHER UNQUANTIFIED POTENTIAL BUDGET CHANGES OR PROPOSALS

TABLE 3 2009/110 | 201011 | 2011/42
£000 L0006 EGoo
2008/08 OUTTURN VARIANCES PROJECTED 7O CONTINUE

Health & Strategic Housing

Radiation Monltoring 7 ?
Legal & HR Services

Law Library - ? 2

Search Administration - 7 ?
ce(;s

Trade Waste 7 7 %
Property Services

Concessionary Travel (potentially, hut also linked to current negotiations) ? 7 7
Financial Services

Procurement Savings - Printing & Stationery 3] ? R

Pracurement Savings - Agency staff ? ? 7

Sub-Total +0.0 +0.0 +0.0
OTHER SAVINGS AND EFFICIENCY OPTIONS

CC(p)s

introduction of co-mingled callection for recyclates {phasead) ? ?

Butky Matters - sharing overheads with Blackpool Council - ? P
Health & Strategic Housing

Further Review of Housing SLA ( @ year agreement in place) - ? ?

Potential Commigsioning / Procurement Opportunities - ? ?
Information & Customer Services

Infarmation Services Restructuring 7 ?
Financial Services

Audit Foes ? 7 ?

Reduced Payroll Administralion following Fair Pay - ? ?

Raview of Car Allowances - = I

Payroll/HR System Replacement Project . o 7

Sub-Total +0.0 +0.0 +0.0/

TOTAL +0.0 #0.0 #0i0

GAPLDENZ0 {207 HiBudget and Planming ProcessiBavings and Efficiency ReviewSUMMARY SAVINGS POSITION

2E0I2009



Page 61

MINUTE 29 2009/10
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
4™ NOVEMBER 2009

CCTV

The Chairman invited Graham Cox, the Head of Property Services, tc address the
meeting with regard to CCTV. A briefing note had been circulated to the attendees.
it was noted that CCTV had been operational in the district for 13 years and a report
wouid be considered by Cabinet in December regarding its future with various
contracts due for renewal. Approximately 6000 incidents had been logged this year
on the 42 cameras which were operational for almost 24 hours a day, compared with
4786 incidents logged during 2006, which indicated that CCTV had a major part to
play in the community safety function. Examples of the range of incidents detected
by CCTV were listed in the briefing note.

It was reported that following on from a review on the effectiveness of CCTV in 2008
several recommendations had been made fo address areas which had been
highlighted as obstructing the effectiveness of CCTV, but the system was still
operating to good effect. Members asked a number of questions regarding the
funding of CCTV and opportunities for seeking contributions towards the running
costs from other sources, the definition of an incident, comparisons with pre-CCTV,
value for money, the operators, the guality of images and mobile cameras. The
Head of Property Services and Chief Inspector Horn responded to the questions
raised.

Whilst revisions to the measuring of statistics made direct comparisons with pre-
CCTV now difficult, it was noted that prior to the instaliation of CCTV car crime had
been a significant problem in the district. The incidents of car crime particularly in car
parks with CCTV had greatly reduced since CCTV had been operational. It was also
suggested that the presence of CCTV gave reassurance to the community.

It was proposed by Councillor Gitbert and seconded by Councillor Bray:

“That the Overview and Scrutiny Commitiee recommend that Cabinet do not reduce
the level of funding provided for CCTV in view of the community safety benefits.”

Upon being put fo the vote 5 Members voted in favour of the propasition and 1
abstained whereupon the Chairman declared the proposition carried.

Resolved:

(1) That the Licensing Manager and Head of Property Services be thanked for
attending and participating in the discussions.

(2) That the Overview and Scrutiny Commitiee recommend that Cabinet do not
reduce the level of funding provided for CCTV in view of the community safety
benefits.



Agenda Iltem 8 Page 62

BUDGET AND PERFORMANCE PANEL

Work Programme
24" November 2009

Report of Head of Democratic Services

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To provide Members with an update of the Budget and Performance Panel Work

Programme.

This report is public

RECOMMENDATIONS

Q) That Members note the items that will be available for consideration at the
meeting of the Budget and Performance Panel scheduled to take place on
26" January 2010, as detailed in the report.

2 That Members be invited to attend the scheduled training sessions.

3) That deferment of the extended Work Programme be noted.

1. The following items will be considered at the Panel’s meeting on the 26" January

2010:

Budget and Policy Framework Proposals

The Leader of the Council will present the Budget and Policy Framework Proposals
for 2010/11.

Lancashire County Council’s Budget Proposals

At the meeting of the Panel on 20™ October, it was resolved that the County Council
be invited to present their budget proposals to a future meeting of the Panel (Minute
No. 23 2009/10 refers).

Update Report of the Corporate Director (Finance & Performance) on the Evaluation
of the Council’'s Major Partnerships




Page 63

) Report of Chairs of the Lancaster District Local Strateqic Partnership’s Thematic
Groups

At the meeting of the Panel on 8" September, it was resolved that the Budget and
Performance Panel include in its Work Programme regular invites to its meetings of
the Chairs of the LDLSP Thematic Groups (Minute No. 14 (1) 2009/10 refers). As
none of the Chairs was available to attend the Panel's meeting on the
24™ November, arrangements will be made for future attendance.

2. In addition to the items to be considered at the meeting, training for Budget and
Performance Panel Members has been arranged on:

° Scrutiny Training — 19" November 2009, commencing at 3.00 p.m. at Lancaster
Town Hall - Frances Taylor (which will have taken place prior to this meeting)

. Treasury Management Training — 24" November 2009, commencing at 4.00 p.m. at
Lancaster Town Hall - Head of Financial Services

. Performance Management Training — 26" January 2010, prior to Budget and
Performance Panel at Morecambe Town Hall

3. Members are requested to note that presentation of the extended Work Programme
has been deferred until 2010.

BACKGROUND PAPERS Contact Officer: Jane Glenton
Telephone: 01524 582068

E-mail: jglenton@lancaster.gov.uk
Ref: JEG




Page 64

IleH UMO] aquedaloln

[ued 8duewlopad
pue 186png 01
loud 0T0Z Atenuer 92

uoISsas 1uswabeue 9duew.ollad

IleH UMmo] Jalsesue] 1e 6002 19qWdAON ,v2 Bulures) uswabeuep Ainseal |
I[leH UMmo] Jalseoue] 18 6002 19qWIBAON 6T Bulurel] Aunnios
anuaA awil/ered oido
Bulurel]
2491 sdnoio anewsay] diysisuled 21691e1S 2207 1211SIQ 181SeIUR] 8yl JO SUO0 wol) Jrey) Jo uoday
(@dueWIONad pue
0T0Z Atenuer 9z | 8doueuld) J0j0a1IQ 81ei0dIoD sdiysiauned Jofely s,|1ounod ay) Jo uonenjeAs ayl uo arepdn

010z Arenuer 92

$82In0Say Joj J0103lIQ
s.Jlouno) Aluno) allyseoue

sfesodold 196png s,|1ouno) Aluno) aliyseaue]

010z Arenuer 9z

(8ouewlouad pue
adueuIq) J1019311q aresodio)

sjesodo.d yiomawel Adljod pue 18bpng

arep Bunasy

a|qisuodsay
132110

uOI1RISPISUOD 10} JISNB

FNINVEOOHd XHOM

TANVd FONVINHO443d ANV 139dN49




	Agenda
	5 Report on the Homelessness Prevention Work of the Doorstep Project April - October 2009
	6 Cabinet Portfolio Holder Reports
	8 Work Programme Report

